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Thiz Technology Group limited  ER# #4137 52 1 A R 2 7]

Corporate Profile

EEEN

Based in Hong Kong, Thiz Technology Group Llimited ["Thiz", the
"Company” or the "Group'} is the first and a leading developer of linux
solutions for FC and provider of internet application technology users.
Thiz was also the first Linux software solution provider listed in the Growth
Enterprise Market ["GEM”) of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in July
2001 (Stock Code: 8119). Thiz is @ provider of various computing
solutions and reloted services targeting individuals, small to medium size
enterprises and educational institutions. The products and services provided
by the Group include Thizlinux (operating system deskiop and server],
applications and other related services, such as software installation,
fraining and education. Thiz launches high quality products that are flexible

to customise for SMEs, government and educational institutions.

Thiz is devoted to developing Linux systems, intemet application technology
and related applications, and promote the Group's brandname to the
global market. Thizlinux is the Group’s R&D backbone on linux operating
systems and applications. The Group has infroduced a wide range of
products including Thizlinux deskiop systems, office suites, server
applications, Internet frading systems, diskless solution, intranet

collaborative scfware, anti~virus software and firewall.
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Corporate Profile

To promote Linux general education, Thiz provides various solutions on
Linux education for primary and secondary schools, tertiary institutions
and training centres. The solutions include course management, training
materials, teaching plans, fraining certifications, examination system and
other related services. Currenily, the Group is actively promoting learing

and usage of Thizlinux producls in China and Hong Kong.

On regional development, the Group has offices in Hong Kong, Taiwan
and China. Through software bundling, OEM partnerships, education
and Thizlinux enterprise solutions, the Group offers comprehensive support
and services to governments, private enferprises, educational institutions

as well as individual users in the Greater China region.
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rporate Milestene

TREEE

2004

Mar 2004

Feb 2004

Jan 2004

2003

Dec 2003

Commencement of the courses for first intake of "Thiz
BEST training programme for Linux Professionals of China

and Hong Kong” in Hong Kong

“1+1+1 Project” = Training School of Beijing Software
Indusiry Promotion Centre/VVorldwide Training Base (Xian)
for the State Software Professionals

Signed "Cooperation Agreement” for "Thiz BEST training
programme for Linux Professionals of China and Hong
Kong” with Cenlre for Innovation and Technology of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong.

ThizServer 7.0 (|A64-bit Version) became the first 64-bit
Linux server awarded LSB1.3 international certification in
Asia

Signed "Cooperative Partner Agreement” with b =75 1E
MR EREMFRAR]

Commenced enrolment of "Thiz BEST training programme
for Linux Professionals of China and Hong Kong”

Became the cooperative pariner with the University of Hong
Kong

"1+1+1 Project” — the first intake of "Linux Network
Engineer” graduated

Signed “Cooperation Agreement” for “Thiz BEST training
programme for linux Professionals of China and Hong
Kong” with Computer Engineering and Information
Technology Department of City University of Hong Kong

Became allionce partner with CompTIA Learning Alliance

2004 ¥

2004 ¥ 3 A

200452 R

20045 1 A

2003 F

2003% 12 A
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Corporate Milestone

TREER

Nov 2003

Oct 2003

Sep 2003

Aug 2003

Jul 2003

Allied with Sybase and jointly developed office application
software

"Thiz Easy Shop” launched in Taiwan with favourable

feedback

“T+1+1 Project” = commenced enrclment in Dalian,

Changchun and Shenyang

Products successfully launched in Shanghai and the Group
donated 600 sets of Linux software to Shanghai Acute
Demand Professional Training Services Centre

Donated 20,000 sets of Linux software to Dalian Municipal
Government

Commenced enrolment of “Linux Network and Software

Engineer” course of “1+1+1 Project” in Beijing

Cooperated with Career Times to launch the first Linux
professionals recruitment webpage in Hong Kong

launched "1+1+1 Project”, in cooperation with Beijing
Software Industry Promotion Centre

HKSAR Government began to apply the Group's software

Signed “Sun’s Policy on Grey and Secondary Market
Transactions of Sun Products & Services” with Sun
Microsystems

Signed "Distributor Agreement” with Jardine OneSolution
(HK} Lid

Signed “Cooperation Agreement” with the Nationwide
Electronic Information Application Education Centre,
Ministry of Informetion Indusiry/School of Continuing
Education of Tsinghua University

Became cooperative partner with Intel

20034 11 A

2003% 10 A

2003% 9 A

20034 8 A

20037 A
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B [1+1+1 T32) FR¥EL
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B3 Sun Microsystems #&]
{Sun's Policy on Grey and
Secondary Market Transactions
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# ardine OneSolution (HK} Lid
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Corporate Milestone

TRERERE

Jun 2003

May 2003

Apr 2003

Mar 2003

Feb 2003

Dec 2002

Sep 2002

Aug 2002

“Thizlinux Desktop 7.0" became the first brand awarded
[SB1.3 certification in Asia

Signed "OEM Software Distribution Agreement” with
Sybase HK i1d

Signed “Cooperative Pariner Agreement” with & 3II/E 2

AN BRAE

Signed “Cooperation Agreement” with Training School
of Beijing Software Industry Promotion Centre

School of Software of Northeast University allied with Thiz
Free Software Education Alliance to promote Thizlinux
courses

Signed "Cooperative Pariner Agreement” with It FUEE
R ARAE

Became cooperative pariner with Oracle
Became cooperative pariner with HP

Office of Shaanxi Provincial Government and Information
Centre of Shaanxi Provincial Government applied

ThizOffice

Joint hands with City University of Hong Kong to promote
education and technology advancement of Linux

Signed agreement with China Electronic Information
Application Education Center of Ministry of Information
industry to establish the National [.T. Training and
Examination Management Office to nurture 175,000
professionals on information technology in three years

Infroduced a series of Thizlinux training course with Peking
University

Introduced Thizlinux courses with Beijing Normal University
Released ThizServer 6.0 and Thizlinux Deskiop 6.2; joint

Linux World Conference and Exposition in L.A.; Established
an education alliance of open-source software in China

200356 A

2003F 5 R

2003%F 4 8

2003 F 3 B

2003 2 A

2002% 12 A

2002 %9 A

2002 % 8 A
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Corporate Milestone

EEREE

Jun 2002 Cooperated with IBM in Taiwan fo launch the SOS Office 2002 &£ 6 A
Suite

Apr 2002 launched Thizlinux Desktop 6.0 and ThizOffice 3.0 2002F 4 8

Feb 2002  Esiablished strategic alliances with Elitegroup and 2002 % 2 A
Chaintech

Jan 2002 Obtained "A+" rafing from Chinc's Standardisation of 2002 & 1 A
Information Technology Committee

Oct 2001 Upgraded Thizlinux Deskiop to 5.0 version 2001 £ 10 B

Jul 2007 Listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong 2001 F 7 F
Limited

May 2001 Llaunched ThizOffice 2.0 2001 5 R

May 2000 Launched Thizlinux Deskiop 1.0 2000% 5 R

Dec 1999 Established the Hong Kong headquarter 199904 12 A

Jun 1998 Company Established 19908 % 6 B

C;\! ThizLinuXx’

Y Wy Education Alliance
B s e s B

B

- - ®
‘2 ThizLinux
g(’/‘\ Open Source Software

Q’,{%g Education Alliance

5 BB EBRHTHNENR

Thi

iz Yechnology Group Limited Thiz Technology Group Limited

mEE
Letter of Sponsorship

BRI EEE BB KiEm ARBF
SERENHEREARY12,000,0007T
FEEREMERLEBEZE -

| Thiz Technology Group Limited is pleased to sponsor ThizLinu application sofoware
1 Dation Municipalits for the p ion of inf on business in Dalian.
The value of sponsorship is equivalent 1o RMB 12,000,000

ER: IQRESENAGE
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« Thiz Technology Group Limitod Thiz Technology Group Limitod
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2 Thiz Technology Group Limited Thiz Technology Group Limited
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Business Development Strategies
enel Plans

ERRRERRTE

Thiz Technology Group Limited B8 1 AT 4 [ 4 1R 2 7]

The Group is committed 1o its established “Seven Core Businesses”,
regarding it as the principal business development strategy, and aim to
globalize the Group's business. Meantime, the Group set out its basic
tone of "Based in the Greater China, seffing eyes on the whole world”.
Presently, the Group's technology of 64-bit Thiz Super 1464 Server 7.0
has been awarded LSB 1.3 intfernational cerfification. Indeed, throughout
the Linux industry, there are only three companies possessing this &4-bit
technology, namely Red Hat in the United States, SUSE in Germany and
our Thiz in Hong Kong. The Group eagerly strives to success and plans

a development tactic of “4 Wheels in One Track with Crossduplication”.

"The First Wheel” is to develop e-commerce applications in Taiwan. The
Group will apply linux core technologies io e-commerce in the
development of B2B, B2C, C2C e-commerce applications such as
“Virtual Mall”, "B R 8" (online
"Trading web” (thizbiz.com) and the launch of “Thiz Easy

"Owners Zone" {ownerszone.com),
wholesale),
Shop”

The Group anticipates to keep developing “Owners Zone” which will

_In Taiwan, ecommerce has achieved highly remarkable results.

become the largest mall zone in Taiwan. By capitalizing this successful
experience, the Group will adopt the same strategies in Hong Kong and
China, through which to accomplish the fourth core of the “Seven Core

Businesses”.

"The Second Wheel” is the Institute of Thiz Technology in Hong Kong.
Apart from the development of Thiz BEST's 1 5-subjects teaching materials
tailored for siudents of “1+1+1 Project” in China, the Institute will continue
to develop and launch project management, 3D animation and games
design, and IC design, hoping to organize online game design
competition in the Greater China region in the foreseeable future. In
addition, the Institute will continuousty update and design new teaching

materials, train the teachers, in order to achieve its education mission of

nurturing experts. Through duplication and promotion, the Institute will

EEBNAZFLERTE FREBER
mEER S BMITEEXBERERL -
BERENHENER  KEGFTT [LRA
RE - ORREER] WER - B ARH
£ 64 {2 70K Thiz Super 1464 Server 7.0 B
MRS 1SB 1.3 BUERBRERAE - AT 6441
TLHISEEE - Bt R R B EBEIRed Hat -
Bl4) SuSE REMEEM Thiz - ER=ZRRAE
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[UERER - X XAER] OEREREI -
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Business Development Strategies
and Plans

ERERRRBRETE

il

deskiop ond server products, the competitive advaniages of the Group's
producis will be further enhanced, thereby driving and promoting its
international strategic alliance and product bundling business. Through

which, the sixth core of the “Seven Core Businesses” will be accomplished.

"The Third Wheel” is in China. With the success of Thiz BEST “1+1+1
Project” training programme, fraining business will gradually be expanded.
QOur training business started from initially one training centre which was
collaborated with Beijing Software Indusiry Promotion Centre, fo now
being expanded to nationwide. Our training centres in China will increase
from 4 in the end of 2003 to 30 by the end of 2004. In addition, Heng
Kong and Taiwan will join the training business and esiablish more than
50 similar centres by the end of 2005, and even to globalize the business.

Then, the fifth core of the “Seven Core Businesses” will be accomplished.

“The Fourth VWheel” is the Group. VWe are going to establish Thizlinux
Institutes all over the Greater China region. These institutes will be
established to meet the need of students” & months’ research and
development practice, affer finishing the Thiz BEST studies. The students
will be divided into different project teams, responsible for research and
development of application software in order to accomplish the Group's
mission of development of supercomputer on Linux {first core),
implementation of e-government affairs (second core) and designing of
solutions for enterprises {third core). Results of the Insfitutes will be mutually
duplicated, localized and optimized. With the globalization of products
and education, the Group will be able to provide worldwide practicing,

research and development, and product aftersale services.

Based on the Group's development sirategy of the “Seven Core Businesses”
and development factic of “4 Wheels in One Track with Cross-duplication”,
we believe the Group’s development will accelerate at full speed with

explosive power.
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Business Development Sirafegies EFZEERKERTE

ane Plans
= — —
S~
% On the joint collaboration agreement signing ceremony
@ between Thiz Technology Group limited and

Department of Computer Engineering and Information
System of City University of Hong Kong

SRR EER AR EF BN M AZEMITIZH
BRI RS ETEIZOER

4 March 2003
—EE=ZF=AMA

Thiz Technology Group Limited  BI#% #:4H

On Thiz Technology Group Limited's Group Summit
SR EEER A EBRNT S Ee

11-12 July 2003
ZEE=FLAt—%+_"H

launching of Thiz Desktop 7.0 and
ThizOffice 4.0
B EEXRLGHE 7.0 REIRF 60/20 2488
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o600 29 August 2003

“EE=ZFENRZ+ANH




ana Plons

Business Development Strategies HBEREBRIE

iu

[ Thiz BEST A7 Linux

1 March 2004
ZETNE=ZR+—H

F ISIA - ICT Expo 2004
AMREirEEeg - 2004 EF%

14-17 April 2004
“ETmMEMA+M
Z++8

Commencement of the courses for the second intake of “Thiz BEST training programme

for Linux Professionals of China and Hong Kong” in Hong Kong |
(Thiz BEST 77 Linux A HEE 18I &

Comimencement of the courses for first intake of “Thiz BEST #raining programme
for Linux Professionals of China and Hong Kong” in Hong Kong
ETHEEE] E-HRENETEHR

-

i
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o S

THIREREBMR |

10 May 2004
SPEMEFRA+R —mE.

Linux World Conference & Expo
linux Wold 8 R EE

4-5 November 2003
—EE=F+—-ANEFRHA

N

CEPA Dolion — Hong Kong Conference for [T industry
CEPA RiE-BE T EXEBHE

4 September 2003
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Financial Highlights BGEE

& Turnover Analysis BB

S

o

T

=

¥
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e | 2004 (Hk$'000) 2003 (HK$'000)

= T , ZEEME (T TEEZF (TR

£ 1 J 48.9% 74.5%

a | '

6] 47,776

g . 052 :

o | 20.2% 18323 1999 ;

g “ i : i / o

5 | N

[6] : LS I L !

% f ‘ 10.9% EJ 4,040 b -
N , E1 : N H

& | S~ ~—
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Distribution of Group's linux based software products

DEEEE R TER

g
L

Sales of computer products

HEERER

D Training income
BEIA

.

| | 2004 2003
a —¥TNE  -TT=F
x HK$/000 HK$'000
;( FHET TET
: , Financial Position BHRR
| - Toolossets ~mAE 48,472 40,381
; } ~ Total liabilities —®@aE 23,043 9,206
| | ~ Shareholders’ funds -BRES 25,429 30,475
j f
: I Financial Ratios gy 3o
f | — Current ratio —mEnt X 4.5 6.1
‘f i - Gross profit margin —BBRERN 58% 76%
| J - Gearing rafio -EERMELE 91% 33%
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Chairmaen’s Stafement

Review

The development of Linux is thriving with the parlicipation of large-scaled
hardware and software suppliers such as IBM, Oracle and HP. Besides,
due to the support of open source as well as the government theme of
"safety first”, many government authorities and corporations have shifted
io use linux software. However, seeing that the market capitalization of
Red Hat in the United Siates surged fo more than US$3 billion, and
Novell's acquisition of SUSE, a linux company in Europe, at a consideration
of US$0.21 billion, our Thiz, given its sophisticated technology, is certain
to be able to do more for a greater achievement. To assiduously work
towards its target of promating the application of Linux, the Group believes
that talents is cn essential and vital factor. Currently, the number of Linux
talents are limited in the Greater China region. During a conference of
three nations, namely China, Japan and Korea, on the topic of common
Linux platform, it was clearly pointed out that supply of Linux talents is the
key to success. Despite Linux has achieved outstanding performance in
the web server market, it is yet to become popular for other commercial
applications and deskiop application and this still takes time and effort.
To overcome ihe obstacle on popularity of Linux, the Group first lounched
Thiz BEST, which is a sophisticated Linux professional training programme.
Combining it with the “1+1+1 Project”, the Group set up 10 fraining
centres of which 3 were situated in Beijing and the remaining located in
Dalian, Changchun, Shenyang, Shanghai, Nanjing, Fuzhou and Xian
respectively. The Group strives fo nurture senior network administration
engineer and software development engineer, so as fo strengthen the
key fundamenials to the greater vision of "Benefiting Our Country, Our
People and Ourselves”. After graduation, those studenis will be arranged
for an internship in Thizlinux Institutes for six months, practicing research
and development of Linux application software. Through such kind of
fraining programme, shortage of professionals and undersupply of Linux

commercial application software will be subsided. More particularly, the

training programmes will bring substantial cash inflow and nurlured
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Chairman’s Statemen?

TE®RE

numerous prominent Linux engineers, project managers and senior
technology teachers for the Group. The teaching materials of Thiz BEST
International Certification prepared by the Group are not only customized
fo its needed professionals, but also fo fechnology base of the external T
professionals in differenl industries. Universities generally put emphasis
on theory but not practice and professionalism, our teaching materials
have completely eliminate such deficiency. Through training to nurture
talents for our Group, other enterprises and the country, we will complete

our first step in popularizing Linux software.

Prospect

With the success in promoting Thiz BEST " 1+1+1 Project” sophisticated
Linux professional training programme in China, the Group infends to
expand the education centres in China, Hong Kong and Taiwan from
10in 2003 to 30 by the end of 2004. The Group also plans to expand
to 50 education centres by the end of 2005. It is expected that the
number of graduates will increase substantially from 1,000-2,000 in
2004 10 3,500-5,000 in 2005. In response fo the facts that the graduated
students will intern in Thizlinux Inslituies to prociice six months for the
research and development of application software, the Group plans fo
set up five more Thizlinux Insfitutes in Beijing, Dalian, Shanghai, Xian
and Shenzhen, in China. The copacity of each instituie will be 400 to
600 students. There will be 1,000 and 3,000 tinux software engineers
in Thizlinux Institutes jointly parficipating in research and development
activities by the end of 2004 and 2005 respectively. Meanwhile, Thiz
will become the largest and the most influential Linux institute over the

world and Thiz products will swifily diffuse across every corer in the
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Chairmen’s Stafement

Greater China region. leveraging on its abundance of Linux professionals
by that time, the Group is certain to see the bulk launching of reliable
application scftware products. In fact, coupled with cross duplication
and application of various products relating to “Thiz Easy Shop” and
Internet e-commerce produced by the branch company in Taiwan, the
generated power will give the Croup sufficient momentum for
development, expansion and a sustained operation. Thus, the Group
defines 2003 is the year of contribution, 2004 the year of success and
2005 the bumper vear.
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Business Review
Based on ihe continuous development of cur business, certain modifications
and odjustments had been made to our "Seven Core Businesses”

development strategy by the management of the Group:

1. development of supercomputer on linux
implementation of e-government

designing of solufions for enterprises
development of e-commerce applications
development of innovative linux education model

establishment of international strategic alliance

N ke

expansion of product distribution and direct sales channels

Apart from changing the fourth core from “introduction of distance
education” to "development of e-commerce applications”, other
components of the business development strategy had remoined
unchanged. Running of the entire core businesses of the Group can be

subdivided into 3 major segments:

1. Taiwan segment
The business development had focused on the “Thiz Easy Shop” and
online business town, known as "Owners Zone”. The Group
developed the "Thiz Easy Shop" by combining the Linux’s software
technology in server with the Internet commercial applications and
had them bundled inio a server hardware, giving all people who
want to fry running their own businesses an opportunity to realize
their dream. Our “Thiz Easy Shop” enables ifs owner to eosily upload
as many as 70,000 pictures and products o the shelf. Such function
is believed o have overcome the limitation of the current e-commerce
opplications in their inability fo make instant product information
update. It also enables information of new products to be availoble
around the globe in real time through the Internet. In addition, all

owners who have purchased our “Thiz Easy Shop” would have their
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web shop listed on the Group's "Owners Zone” websife
[ownerszone.com), allowing them to share the browsing rate of the
website and to help open up new business opporiunity for them.
Furthermore, assisting personnel would be sent 1o give odvices and
to train inexperienced business owners in operating a business. The
Group has invested substaniial talent and other resources in the
development and contincous modification of the "Thiz Easy Shop” as
well as the design of the “Owners Zone”. We are optimistic that the
"Owners Zone” will develop into the biggest online business town in
Toiwan in the near future. On the other hand, operation of the B2B
business town [thizbiz.com} will also be commenced saon, inheriting
the strength of Linux in its capacity of remote service and maintenance
in server computer, and complemented by the concept of
supercomputer developmem [clusiers run on network), Currenily, mojor
portals like Google, Yahoo and Amazon are all using Linux servers,
demonstrating that the combination of Linux supercomputer and Internet
ecommerce applications offers a perfect partnership and is probably
the best alternative as far as cost is concerned. Adding fo such
advantage will be the expected growth in popularity of the 64-bit
computers in the next 2 years. As a result, the momenium of &-
commerce applications would be much greater than it is now. The
future of development of Thiz Group's Taiwan arm will be building
upon the joint force of a commercialized operation, support of Linux
and software applications. We also intend o promote and apply

this successful model to other regions and markets.

. Hong Kong segment

The Group had been focusing on the upgrade of existing products
such as the upgrade of Linux deskiop product from Thizlinux Deskiop
7.0 10 8.0, upgrade of office application software from ThizOffice
4.010 5.0, upgrade of server system software from ThizServer 6.0
to 7.0, upgrade of antivirus sofware from Thiz AntiVirus 6.0 to 7.0,

upgrade of firewall and intrusion defection system from ThizFirewall
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6.010 7.0, and upgrade of Thiz Database from Thiz Dafabase System
1.0 1o 2.0. We also launched a new product, the Highly Available
Cluster Application ThizHA1.0. Most significantly, in addition to our
desktop product which has received LSB 1.3 international certification,
the Group's newly launched 64-bit server Thiz Super IA 64 Server
7.0 also received LSB 1.3 international certification, the first ever
and the only one in Asia, ranking it alongside with Red Hat of the
United States and SuSE of Germany. The key sirategy of the business
of the Hong Kong segment is on development of software that meets
the requirements of international certifications and international
standard, thereby gaining the leading status in Linux in Asia. On the
other hand, the Group has established Institute of Thiz Technology in
Hong Kong which specializes in making of linux teaching materials
and has completed the planning and compilation of 15 Thiz BEST
feaching materials. These maferials have provided the “1+1+ 1 Project”
training programmes in China with the first and only systematic,
progressive and firstclass feaching materials package for training of
Linux software engineers in the world. The entire programme can be
divided info 4 phases and 4 infernational certificates: the fundamenial
"B" series which consists of 2 “Thizlinux Certified Professional” courses
focus on desktop and office applications; the web-related "E” series
which consists of 3 "Thizlinux Certified Engineer” courses focus on
system administration, network administration and network security;
the software developmenti related "S” series which consists of the
fundamental database and PHP programming essential to the
"Thizlinux Certified Network Software Engineer” programme (labeled
by the Group as S1), the C and C++ programming and principles of
kernel essential to the "Thizlinux Certified System Software Engineer”

labeled by the Group as $2), the JAVA programming and advanced
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and most advanced phase of the programme which concems the
“Thizlinux Certified Total Solution Expert” and which includes 4
courses, namely advanced LAMP development and application,
cdvanced kernel development and application, advanced security
administration development and application, and advanced
embedded Linux kernel development and application. These courses
are available only in the Thizlinux Institutes of the Group. The Group
aims to frain up o large quantity of excellent engineers through
systematic, progressive, scienlific and professional methods and
thereby fulfill its underlying vision of “Benefiting Our Couniry, Our

People and Ourselves”.

. The PRC segment

The Group’s PRC arm had entered into cooperative agreements with
16 top university software insfitutions designated by the State in relation
to software donation as well as the establishment of Linux development
and fraining centres. Among them include Peking University, Beijing
University of Aviation and Astronomy, Tianjin University, Nankai
University, Northeastern University, Dalian University of Technology,
Northwestern Polytechnic University, Xi'an Jiaotong University,
Shanghai Jiaotong University, East China Normal University, Nanjing
University, Southeastern University, Zhejiang University and Sun Yar-

sen University.

Secondly, the Group had completed 2 course materials under the co-
operating project with China Electronic Information Application

Education Centre of Ministry of Information Industry of China. One of
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the courses was about the theory and application of Linux deskiop FBEHIE S—AElnx ZHRERE
20 and office, the other was about the theory and application of Linux HRETRARE - MAHRECEASEEE
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required study materials for the national examination of information

technology. With the effort of promoting Linux education and
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examination o the whole country, the status of Thizlinux as a household
name will be further enhanced, thereby consolidating its leading

position in China and Asia.

Furihermore, under the leadership of Beijing Municipal Commission
of Science and Technology, the representative of “1+1+1 Project” of
Beijing Software Industry Promotion Centre and the CEO of the Group
had participated in the “Unification of Linux Platform in China, Japan
and Korea” Conference. In the 3 nations conference held in Osaka,
Japan, the Chinese representative, Officer Hu from Beijing Software
Industry Promotion Centre delivered a speech on prolessional training
and about the “1+1+1 Project” and implementation in co-operation
with Thiz. According to the “1+1+1 Project”, Thiz was commitied to
train up 100 Linux teachers, 1,000 Llinux engineers and 10,000
Linux users.

Based on the “1+1+1 Project”, the Group had established a personnel
fraining industry chain. In such system, students {who should be
university graduates with degree in science or engineering or college
graduate in computer-related disciplines] would attend a é-month
fraining programme and complete the 11 courses under the "B, “E"
and "S” series of the Thiz BEST programme. Alter possing the
examination, the students would be sent to Thizlinux Insfitutes to have
o &month internship and o complete @ minimum of one research
and development project. Afterwards, through the personnel
department of Thiz, they would be assigned to specific positions in a
wide variety of industries to start off their careers. Possessing
fundamental knowledge in theory and application, not only would
these students be awarded with the Thiz BEST infernational certificates
and proot of qualification by institute of Thiz Technology, they would
also be given permanent email addresses under thizlinux.org and

life-long privilege of attending the Group's forums and seminars for

free. We believe that as these students enter info the industries they

hE - B 37 BN Linux ££ 7 B PA B S0
BEML -

LI RAREEGT - ERANG
ERREROEZDN [1+141 T3] A
SERERREEEZS2MT [F B &8
F—linxFa ] ERARKERERN=E
RERG  FERXILREEFEREE
RLEBAEEET - B BRRMER
TAMBINRRASHARECESN
| IR AHBEERSR -
M+ 1+ TR IRENSHMFEEAER
B2 100 ELinuxB93RED - 1,000 @ Linux
B THEED - 1 10,000 linux KIFF o

=5

M+1+

SEE N+1+1 T8 BB LETT

—EAMREEER - 28 (BRKZ
SHBTRGAEEEFERARME)
BIBET 685 953 KT Thiz BEST
B8] TEl TSI ZMHEYIM 1 FIZGEE
BIlEmERE  HERT TR
linux TEREB 6 AARTERED —E
EREAHRE REBARASANER
B RHEME ERITRERE - B
AT S TEREERNER - TMER
CAJESS B AR B2 AE 3 & Thiz BESTEY
BMRIIRBELEN  BEAUEHE
thizlinux.org MR G BB RR G2 E
SMEBENRERERE - BEEFHE
EE—ETRERES - B TRE—E
AT PSRRI A E BB A R E
ges AR N 8 RR S EZMANR

Annual Report 2004 £ 3




Management Discussion EEENWEDN
and Anelysis

‘E are going fo serve, they will be oble to excel and become potential CHMEECEEBRNARIANRER

% leaders in their organizations, leveraging on Thiz's powerful research A RN REEE - Rt EEHA
% and development sirength as well as interactions among fellow students NEREENNE  RAREEEAMIE
% and teachers. Furthermore, they will also help the Group to extend its HREREENS D - [1+1+1 1218
= business reach and strengthen its product promotion force. Response el B RASE =F A
_’g fo the “1+1+1 Project” training programme had been enthusiastic. 7% 81BE|I2003FQRE 127 + 4
g_ The project originally set to run for 3 vears, but out of our expectation, BRAERBETHIT400BEE - )
(_% as many as 400 students were recruited during the 4 months from RR2004F4RENKREESEE =
_? September to December 2003. This group of students would eventuclly B2 B EREARERNERIIGENT
—% graduate after April 2004, In fact, @ lot of them had already secure e BEEREBEAMEE 2004 FIEE
i} a good job before graduation. We believe such trend would continue RIEKR - 2004 FreHE2EBEE Y
= and further extend in 2004. We are hopeful that Thiz would help 2000%|3000{EBE A B linux#i i T

train up as many as 2,000 to 3,000 competent Linux software A2ED - AGHE R A .

engineers for the country in 2004.
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Financial Review

Financial highlights

The consolidated turnover of the Group for the vear ended 3 1st March,
2004 was HK$37,415,000 (2003: HK$64,152,000), representing
o decrease of 41.7% compared to the previous year. The significant
decrease in revenue was brought by the termination of a major contract
for distribution of the Group's linux based software preducts due o breach

of coniract by the customer.

In fine with the significant decrease in tumover, gross profit for the Group
decreased from HK$48,768,000 in 2003 to HK$21,565,000 in
2004, while the gross profit margin dropped from 76.0% 1o 57.6%. The
maijor reason for the decreases in gross profitability was due to decrease
n the distribution of the Group’s Linux based software producis that had

a much higher profit margins.

During the year, provision for doubtful debts of HK$ 13,048,000 (2003:
HK$11,109,000) had been made for several outstanding irade debiors.
The Group had actively taken procedures to demand setilements and

had undergone legal proceedings in certain coses.

Total operating costs were approximately HK$22,516,000 {2003:
HK$31,025,0C0]. As ¢ percentage fo turnover, this represent an increase
from 48.4% in 2003 to 60.2% in 2004.

Loss aftributable to shareholders and loss per share for the year were

HK$ 13,353,000 [2003: profit of HK$7,135,000) and HK$O.73 cents
[2003: earnings of HK$0.43 cents) respectively.
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Financial Review [confinued)

Capitalization

During the year, the Group had capitalized operating costs of
approximately HK$4,172,000 {2003 Nil} in respect of development
of the Group's Linux products, proprietary fraining materials and

ecommerce application systems.

Segment information
The Group is principally engaged in three business segments in four
geographical regions. The Group presented its segment information based

on nature of their operations and the products and services they provided.

Financial resources and liquidity

As at 31st March, 2004, shareholders’ funds of the Group amounted fo
HK$25,42%,C00 (2003: HK$30,475,000). Current assets amounted
to HK$40,997,000 {2003: HK$36,145,000), of which
HK$2,542,000 {2003: HK$ 1,212,000} were cash and bank deposis.
Current liabilities of HK$9,043,000 {2003: HK$5,906,000) mainly
comprised of ils trade payables, other payables and accruals, and

aomounts due to Directors. Current ratio of the Group was 4.5 (2003:

o.1).

As at 31st March, 2004, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$3 1,954,000 (2003: HK$30,239,000). The

Directors considered the Group's liquidity position was healthy.
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Financial Review (continued)

Gearing ratio

The gearing raiio calculated on the basis of total liabilities over
shareholders’ funds as at 31st March, 2004 is 90.6% (2003: 32.5%).
The increase was due to the further issue of HK$ 10,000,000 unlisted
convertible notes and increase in trade deposits and funds advanced

from the Directors during the year.

Unlisted convertible notes

On 26th March, 2004, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with certain subscribers for the issue of convertible notes with
the principal amounts of HK$ 10,000,000 which bear interest at the
rate of 2.5% per annum with maturity on 25th March, 2007. The notes
are convertible info new shares of the Company af an initial conversion
price of HK$0.036 per share {subject to adjusiments). Details of the
issue of convertible notes are set out in the Company's announcement on

Qth March, 2004,

Al the balance sheet date, the Company received the subscription money
for the aforementioned convertible notes and classified them as non-
current lichilities. The issue of these nofes was completed on 6th May,

2004,

There were also HK$4,000,000 unlisted convertible notes bearing inferest
of 2.5% per annum, with maturity on 16th January, 2006, issued in lost
vear. The notes are converible into new shares of the Company at @

conversion price of HK$0.036 per share.
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Management Discussion
and Analysis

Financial Review [continued)

Exposure to foreign exchange risk
The functional currencies of the Group's operations are Hong Kong dollars,
Renminbi {"RMB") and New Taiwan Dollars ["NT$"). The Directors consider

that the potential foreign exchange exposure of the Group is limited.

Charges on assets and contingent liabilities
As ot 31st March, 2004, the Group had no charges or pledge of assets

and material confingent liabilities.

Capital commitments

On 28th March, 2002, a joint veniure agreement was entered into by
the Company, Eaglemax International Investment Limited {"EIIL"), a
company wholly owned by Mr. Wong Hoil Wong, and Beijing Normal
University ["BNU") in relation to the formation of o sinoforeign equity
joint venture, JingShi Thizlinux Laboratory Stock Company (the “JV"}.
Pursuant to the joint venture agreement, the Company, EliL and BNU are
committed to contribute RMB 15,000,000, RMB 15,000,000 and
RMB20,000,000 respectively for their respective interests of 30%, 30%
and 40% in the V. However, there is no payment schedule specified in

the joint venlure agreement.

On 3rd June, 2002, the Company, EllL and BNU entered into a joint
venture supplemental agreement whereby the three parties agreed to set
up/develop the 100 JingShi Thizlinux Internet Course Programmes (the
"Programmes”). Under the joint venture supplemental agreement, each
of the Company and EllL is committed to investing RMB 10,000,000 for
the development of the Programmes whereas BNU will be responsible
for the development, design of the courses and the provision of course
confents. Thers is no invesiment schedule specified in the supplemental

agreement.
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Financial Review (continued)

Capital commitments {continued)

Subsequent to the dale of entering inlo the supplemenial agreement,
BNU infended to agree with the Company and EllL fo fix the timeline for
invesiments in the Programmes by the end of june 2002, this was

disagreed by the Company and EllL.

As advised by the PRC lawyers, the disagreement amongst the three
parlies has made the whole contractual arrangement incomplete and,
accordingly, all the three parties fo the agreements are no longer committed

fo invest in the |V and the Progrommes.

Employees and remuneration policies

Human resource capital is a major resource of the Group. The Group
recognised this by providing substantial opportunities on the job, and
encourage personal development and training of the staff.

As at 31st March, 2004, the Group had cbout 110 employees, including
Directors of the Company. Total staff costs for the year under review
including Directors’ remuneration amounied io approximately
HK$ 14,718,000 (2003: HK$15,071,000). The overall workforce had
been very sfable and turnover rate remains very low. The staff were
remunerated based on their work performance, professional experience
and prevailing market practices. In addition to basic salaries and
Mandaiory Provident Fund scheme, the Group also offered staff benefits
including medical insurance, share options, performance bonus and sales

commission.
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and Analysis

Use of Proceeds FERERE

The proceeds from the issue of new shares of the Company pursuantlo AR BIRZFE—F+ AETHEMBITH
placing in July 2001 after deduction of related expenses, amounted to - B& 15 - FIBERIBENKBAEHZEN A
approximately HK$26,000,000. Included in the above net proceeds of 26,000,000 &7t « ket &l - FIFTSRUIE
HK$26,000,000, approximately HK$5, 100,000 and HK$5,000,000  F%8 26,000,000 # 74 + £ 5,100,000
was planned to provide additional working capital of the Group and 7L 5,000,000 BT A BB BIEAKE
reserve for future investment opportunities or contribution to other joint  ZEESNEEE & KB IEREE - LILE AR

ventures for the development of Linux solutions respectively. The remaining B EHTHFE Lnux BRFRTEHME

Thiz Technology Group limited BI85 EHiT 4 B4 1 2 &)

net proceeds was planned and applied up to 31st March, 2004. The &4 El - ISFHIEFESH T AR E R ElIT

excess amount used had been financed by the above-mentioned working MEE_ZTNE=A=+—RBILBHE

capital and reserve. c HMEERMN OB LSEL S LFEFER
Yoo

Originally Amount

planned up to utilized up to

31st March, 2004* 31st March, 2004
BEFE_Z2TME BE_EZZWE
=ZBA=+—-ALk ZR=+—Bi

FELE EHRe#
HK$'000 HK$ 000
THET FET
Contribution to the joint ventures to develop AERERERTE linux

application software on Linux [ERE 5 7,000 3,504
Sefting up sales office in Beijing EIL RS HERER 3,000 4,684
Marketing and oromotion MBHEENEE 3,000 4,588
Enhancement of the Group’s existing linux products BXR AEEIRE linux Ed 2,000 8,384

Development of web applications and other FEEEERRZA AL
computing products/services EEMD BB 500 3,861
Purchase of hardware equipment BEEMR 400 979
Total 5 15,900 26,000
28 * Amounts are extracted from the Company’s prospectus dated 20th July, — * BT BB EARRARRIET—F LA
2001 issved in relation fo the Company's placing and proposed listing of THRARRASETEE REZRDERE

shares on GEM., REMMAIEZEEER -
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Progress Against Business Objectives

Develop applicalion software on
linux platform with joint venture

pariners

WMAEERAARME
lnux L EEREHE

Business objectives

up to 3 1st March, 2004
as stated in prospectus
EEEERML
BE_ZTHNF
=A=+—-B82z

3 A=

Start development work of
point of sale system with
Yuan VWang

lounch Web-based education
platform

Start development work of
!ogistics management system

with Yuan Wang

Start development work of office

information system with
Yuan Wang

Start development work of

personnel management system

with Yuan Wang

launch point of sale system

BIRPRFAFEEHEL
FETIE

EHELHEEFE

BRERFAMAEERS

%%IW
ERERLEELERS

%%IW

HEZRAAZEERS

FREI{E

HEHHEM RS

i

EBENRENEENEEZER

Actual business progress
up to 31st March, 2004

ﬁ:t——? g[@i
—A=+t-82
EREBEE

The software development plan with
Yuan Wang has been suspended.
Instead, the Group has developed
and marketed its own "Thiz Easy Shop”

System

The project has been postponed and
expected to be launched in 2005
The development plan has been
suspended {as discussed above)

The development plan has been
suspended {as discussed above)

in the course of studying the passibility

of development in-home

Suspended
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Progress Against Business Objectives [continued) BREERIRABTEEZRE (7

Business obiectives
up o 31st March, 2004

os siated in prospecius Actual business progress
BLEEEF up fo 31st March, 2004
HE_TETNE BEFTNF
ZA=+—-Bz =ZR=+—-BZ
EBER EREBEE

Marketing siraiegies - Road show tour in the - The Group is actively promating
PRC, Hong Kong fo promote Linux products in various universities
the Group's Linux products and educational institutions in the

PRC through ifs training progrommes

in the Greater China Region

SRR - RPE - FRETUEEE — BBERATEMEZEIRE
HEAREEZ linux B AEEDAEZEZHAZRASHE

BRER InxERZHEETE




R e T

Biegrephical Defails off Direciors and
Senier Menagerment

ESERSEEEAEEN

Execulive Directors

Mr. Lin Chien Hsin

Chairman

Mr. Lin, aged 50, graduated from the Economic Faculty of Taiwan
University and had involved in research studies in Harvard and Standford
Business Schools. He had been the Vice President of Holiek Semiconductor
Manufacturing Co., ltd. Besides, he had also been the Chief Financial
Officer of United Microelectronics Corporation, a semi-conductor
manufacturer whose shares are listed in the Stock Exchange of Taiwan,
and had been working there for about 18 years. He has in-depth

knowledge in financial management. He was appoinied as Executive

Director and Chairman of the Group on 24th December, 2002

Ms. Wanzi Huang

Deputy Chairman

Ms. Wanzi Huang, aged 29, is the Deputy Chairman and a founder of
the Group. She had about 8 years” experience in computer trading and
international trading. She is responsible for marketing the Group’s Linux
products to computer manufacturers in the U.S.. Ms. Huang graduated
with a Bacheler's Degree in Administration in Fundagao Getulio Vargas

in Brazil.

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong

Executive Director

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong, aged 49, is an Executive Director and a founder
of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 26 years’ experience in sales and
marketing, in particular in electronics and computer industries. Mr. Wong
was the Chairman of Association of Elecironic Components industry of
Taipei from 1990 to 1993. He oversees the sales and marketing straegies
of the Group. Mr. Wong graduated from the Department of indusrial

Management of Tamsui Oxford College in Taiwan with a diploma.

AR

MERH

FE

MEE S0 BEERGEAREES
B o X BN R R A ERERN ST -
METERFEBRNERDFIENEBE - 1t
S HIRBEBEE TRODER AR 2R
BE REZLREEAISFZA -Z2
RS EREENF]  ERINAEREERFR
SFLET - MEERTBHBEE R-FTTFT
“ET AT OEEREATERMITE
e

Emmzt

IFRE
FERBMALT 295 AEBEEEERER
BIA - BREREZRBBRESTEED
BEER - HEBENEEMEMIEHERE
AEBZ linux ER - BR T RENEH
Fundagao Getulio Vargas + BEEITHE+

i -

FlERE

HITEF

TEEEE - 495K  AARMTESRR
BEIEA - TELETRB 20 FEHEER L
BEIETRERETE - TRER—NA
FEE-NANZFHHERILTEFEHE
XRARCETRE WEREEAREZEE
Wi - TRAEBBLEENKIREREESR
RIXEEFEEZE -

Annual Report 2004 F 3




fi
«
ju4
irs
i
i
e
=
w
Hr
=1
ax
e
L
=
Q
>
Q
O
>~
oy
2
2
=
¢
o]
[y
N
=
—

Biegraphical Defeils of Directers
Senier Menegement

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Li Zhe

Ms. Li Zhe, aged 34, is a qualified PRC lawyer. Ms. Li graduated with a
Bachelor's Degree in Economic Law from Zhongshan University, the PRC,
a Master’s Degree of Business Administration from Murdoch University,
Australia and a Postgraduate Diploma in law from the Manchester
Metropolitan University of the United Kingdom. Ms. Li has served o number
of law firms in the PRC and Hong Kong. She was appointed as an

independent non-executive Director in July 2001 .

Mr. Ko Ming Tung, Edward

Mr. Ko Ming Tung, Edward, aged 43, is a solicitor and pariner of Messrs.
Alfred lam, Keung & Ko. He holds a Bachelor of laws Degree and is @
member of The Llaw Society of Hong Kong. Mr. Ko has been practicing
as a solicitor in Hong Kong for more than 13 vears. M. Ko was appointed
as an independent non-executive Directors of the Company in January
2004. Mr. Ke is also independent non-executive director of U-Cyber
Technology Holdings Limited, Sinochem Hong Kong Holdings Limited
and Guo Xin Group Limited.
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Biegraphical Defwils off Direciors end
Senior Menagement

ESREEEEAESBHN

Senior Management

Mr. So King Yan

M. So King Yan, aged 29, is the R&D Manager of the Group, overseeing
Linux development projects. M. So has over 11 years of experience in
computer and linux programming. He graducted from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree and Master of
Philosophy Degree in Computer Science and Engineering, and had
conducted research on mobile file system in Linux. Prior fo joining the
Group in August 2001, he had involved in the design and development
of a marketing platform based on J2EE technology using Weblogic and
Oracle on Linux platform. He atso tutored undergraduate computer courses

on Linux af The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chan Sai Yan

Mr. Chon Sai Yan, aged 29, is the Financial Controller of the Group,
and Company Secretary, Qualified Accountant and Authorised
Represeniative of the Company, and is responsible for the Group's
accounting, finance, human resources and administrative functions. M.
Chan has over 7 years of experience in accounting, finance and
adminisiration in Hong Kong. He graduated with a Bachelor's Degree in
Accouniancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, and is an
Associate Member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Prior 1o joining the Group, he was financial accountant of Liv Chong

Hing Investment Limited. He joined the Group in December 2002.
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Directers’ Repor

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and ihe Group for

the year ended 3 1st March, 2004,

Principal Activities
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities

of its subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Results and Dividend
The results of the Group for the vear ended 31st March, 2004 are set

out in the cansolidated income statement on page 50.

The direciors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect

of the year ended 31st March, 2004,

Financial Summary
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the five
years ended 31st March, 2004 is sef out on pages 108 to 109

respectively,

Fixed Assets

The Group purchased fixed assets amounted to approximately
HK$654,0C0 during the year. Details of movements in fixed assets of
the Company and the Group are sef out in note 12 fo the financial

statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capita! during the vear

and the reason thereof are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.
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Directers’ Repert

EETRE

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for the pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a prorata basis to existing

shareholders.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 24 to the financial stafements and the

consolidated siaiement of changes in equity on page 55 respectively.

Distributable Reserves
As at 31st March, 2004, the Company's distributable reserves amounted
o HK$4,838,000.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares
Neither the Company, nor any of iis subsidiaries purchased, redeemed

or sold any of the Company's listed securities during the vear

Directors and Directors’ Service Conlracts

The directors who held office during the year were:-

Executive .directors:
M. Lin Chien Hsin
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong
Ms. Wonzi Huang

Independent non-executive directors:

Mes. Li Zhe

M. Ko Ming Tung, Edward
{appoinied on st january, 2004)

M. Kwok Ming Wa

[resigned on st January, 2004)
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Directors’ Repord

Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts (continued)

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Wong Hei Wong shall retire and, being eligible, offers himself for

re-election at tne forthcoming annual general meeting.

Ms. Li Zhe and Mr. Ko Ming Tung, Edward were not appointed for a
specific term as they are subject to refirement and re-election at the
Company's annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s

Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company's Articles of Association,
Ms. i Zhe and Mr. Ko Ming Tung, Edward shall refire and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

No director has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed his/her
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited fthe “GEM') (the “GEM Lisiing
Rules”} for the vear ended 31st March, 2004 and the Company considers

the independent non-executive directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Apart from the iransactions as disclosed in note 31 to the financial
statements, no other coniracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its holding companies or subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of

the year or at any fime during the vear.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the "Scheme”}, which
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 6th July, 2001, for the
purpose of praviding incentives and rewards to eligible paricipants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include any fulHime executive director or employee of o
company within the Group. The Scheme shall remain in force for 10
years from &th July, 2001 during which the directors may make offer 1o

grant share options to eligible participants.

Pursuant to the terms of the Scheme, the maximum number of share options
permitted 1o be granted is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to
10% of the Company's shares in issue as af the date of commencement
of dealings of the Company's shares on the GEM unless further
shareholders’ approval has been obtained (See remark il} and the
maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each
participant in the Scheme shall not exceed 25% of the maximum number

of share options which may be granted under the Scheme (See remark

(if)).
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Directers’ Repert

EEERE

Share Optien Scheme {continued)

Remarks:

Since the adoption of the Scheme on 6th July, 2001,
amendments have been made to Chapter 23 of the GEM
listing Rules in respect of Share Option Scheme whereby if
the Company wishes to continue to grant opfions under the
Scheme on or cfter 1st October, 2001, it must also comply

with the requirements set cut therein.

i) with effect from 1st October, 2001, the maximum number
of the Company’s shares which can be granted under the
Scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 10% of

the Company's shares in issue at the date of approval.

{ii] with effect from 1st October, 2001, the maximum number
of the Company's shares which can be gronted to each
parficipant must not in any 12-month period exceed 1%

of the Company's shares in issus.

Any grant of share options to a connected person {as defined in the

GEM Listing Rules) must be approved by the independent non-executive

directors. VWhere share options are proposed fo be granted to a connected

person who is also a substantial shareholder {os defined in the GEM

listing Rules| of the Company, or any of his/her respective associates,

and the proposed grant of share options, when aggregate with the options

already granted to that connected person in the past 12-month period,

would entitle him/her to receive more than 0.1% of the total issued share

capital of the Company for the time being and the value of which is in

excess of HK$5 million, then the proposed grant must be subject to the

approval of shareholders of the Company in general meefings.
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Directors’ Report

Share Option Scheme (continved)

The consideration for the grant of an option is HK$ 1 each. An option
may be exercised at any time during a period as defermined by the
direciors which shall not be less than three years and not more than ten
years from the date of ccceptance of options offered under the Scheme

by the grantee.

A summary of the mavements of the share options granted under the

Scheme during the year is as follows: -

Number of share options

BERARE

Adjustment for

Outstanding  rights issue of Outstanding

Name of as at Company’s as at
director 1.4.2003 shares 31.3.2004
RIZBBZH HELFRD RZIBBME
mA—-H CHBEER ZA=t+-H
EERE HR{TE AR BRITE
Note 2)
(Hiz2)
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong 1,640,000 179,014 1,819,014
FERLE
Ms. Wanzi Huang 16,540,000 1,805,423 18,345,423
RRAZT

18,180,000 1,084,437 20,164,437

BREsD (&)
FiRHZBRIERERS ERT  MBAE
SRERET  AEERTE  ERHRE
RAER A B BB T ERE R SRS T
PR=ZFEMIXABETF -
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FRRETERL Z BREEBMNT

Exercise
price Exercise
Date of grant  per share period
-1
@HAH TER e
Noie 2) (Note 1)
(Fsx2) (W)
HK$
T
215t November, 0.284 30th June, 2002
2001 io 29th June, 2012
—2E-F g %Sk -2
+—A=+-H AR=+BE
ZE-CF
NAZTAH
21st November, 0.284 30th June, 2002
2001 to 29t June, 2012
—BE-F ZERECE
+—fAZ+-8 ~AZTRE
b g3
ANAZTAHE
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Thiz Technology Group limited  BDEEIET £ EH R4 F)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise price is to be determined by the directors in its absolute
discrefion but in any event not less than the highest of {i} the nomingl
value of the shares of the Company; (i) the average of the closing prices
of the shares of the Company on the GEM for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date on which the relevant option is granted
o the employee; and (iil] the closing price of the shares of the Company

on the GEM on the date on which the relevant option is granted.

Nofes:

1. The share options are fully vested on 30th June, 2002.

2. The exercise price and the outstanding number of options have been adjusted

for the rights issue of the Company’s shares on 24th October, 2003.

No share option was granted and lapsed during the vear.

At 31st March, 2004, the number of shares to be issued under share
options granted under the Scheme was 20,164,437, representing 0.99%

of the issued share capital of the Company.

meeEntt (&)
EFRELHRBERETITERE  EER
WMENBERTIIZERREENALFR
DEE - (AR EZEAESRLAH
BREZHADERZSZREARRZ TR
Wi Rl ARARGRBEEHREERE
HERTE IR 2 T E -

o5

1. BREN-_ZEZ_FXRE=THZERERA
FiE e

2 BREZOEERAOERREZRADRE
AARZFEIET A TOARTREZE
BEEM LS -

F NI E T BAREER LR
RIFZME=ZA=+—H  RiFHEEL

ZEREETEITRMNEE 20,164,437
B BB R FEEITHRAE 0.99% -
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EEERS

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities of
the Company

As af 31st March, 2004, the interests or short positions of the directors
and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations [within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance {"SFO"), Chapter 571
under the Laws of Hong Kong), which were notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO lincluding interests or short
positions which they have taken or deemed o have taken under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, fo be entered in the register referred fo therein, or which
were required, pursuant to Rule 5.61 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were os foliows:—

EERERTHRARRELAFNEFZEE

RIBEME=A=+-H SESBRFE
THABRERRSCETAREER (F8
REREDE S7 BEFHRABGE ([F
HREEER]) EXVE) 28D - 8RR
NREHFEEARBEFHRPERFIEXV
HBE7RBHBZAERARIREFABRER
SFBRAEI([BRA]) 2R EA (B
EREES KRR ERIEUR SR E
SEBHEBIEESREE)  IBEBEEFR
B BHIFEIS2HEEENRRIEX I &
Sz ESNEE - SREEI R LA
F 5.0V FEREARAR RERPRZ ER)
BAWT
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Directers’ Repeort

Directors’ and Chiel Executives’ Interests in Securities of

the Company (confinued)

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company

Type of interests and
number of shares held

WA RMSRANE

Name of director

EFHESR

Mr. Lin Chien Hsin
MIEF S E

Mr. Wong Hoi Wong
FElEEAE

Ms. Wanzi Huang
BB L

Note: These shares are registered in the name of Englemax Intemnational
Investment Limited ("EIL"}, @ company owned by Intelligent Management
Limited {"IML"} as the trustee of Intelligent Management Discretionary Trust,
a family discrefionary trust, the objects of which include Mr. Wong Hoi
Wong, his family and any charity in the world. As at 31st March, 2004,
Mr. Wong Hoi Wong held the entire issued share capital of IML. By

353,000,000

86,459,000

Other

interest

HtER
{Note)
(Kist)

397,200,000

virtue of SFO, Mr. Wong Hoi Wong has an interest of such shares.

il

REBETRARRELAFESZHES

)
(o) ZAAHERRBERDZRE

Percentage

Number of the
of share Company’s
options issued share
held Total capital
hEx2E

Fris EBTHR=E
FRRREN B #et =41 4
- 353,000,000 17.29%
1,819,014 399,019,014 19.55%
18,345,423 104,804,423 5.13%

Frak : ERBLARIR T BAEaglemax Infernational Invest-
ment limited ([EIIL]} 2 BB BELHE - &
2 RIHA Intelligent Management Limited
(TMLD) AR IR 2HEFE Intelligent Man-
agement Discretionary Trust ZZFEA &1
e ZEEEIHEARRIIERER
BREARZRERZZEE - R-BE
ME=ZRB=+—H  ZEUERERA M
BRI EITRA - RBESREEIES
IS EELER G 2R -




Directors’ Report

EEEHE

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities of
the Company [coninued)

{b) Short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
Save gs disclosed herein, as at 31st March, 2004, none of the
directors has short positions in the shares or underlying shares of

equity derivatives of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31st March, 2004, none of the direciors
had any inferests or short positions in the shares, underlying shores of
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations [within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO}, which were notified fo the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO [including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed
io have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required pursuant
o Section 352 of the SFO, 1o be entered in the register referred 1o
therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rule 5.61 of the GEM Listing

Rules, o be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

EFRZEMRAARFLATEHFZHES

(&)

(b) Z2IRDREBROZER
BRAREFEEN R-FFNFZA
Zt—RB BERHERARQRZENG
BRAITET A ZARRD R EAER

HE o
BB ERESEN ZFE=- =+
— B FEERENAD A S E T8
B (T2 RESDHEEMNE XN Z) 2%

0 - AR M NEFHE CAREEF R
BIRIEXNVEE7 R8P HEHMNEERATR

Iz BERRER (BEREEHFLEE
GHBRIEREREFRRAEE 2 Ea
RER)  RREFEEFRBERIEIS52F
BRGSOz Z2RfR R

\\\

B BBREIFRKR ETRAIE 5 61 FAERN
ERRNFIRBZRZERELER -
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Directors’ Report

i

SERE

Substantial Shareholders’ Interesis

As at 31 March 2004, the following persons (not being the directors
and chief executives of the Company] had inferests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required fo be kept under Section 336 of the

SFO as follows:~

Name of shareholders

Number of shares held

FERTZES
R-ZZTWNE=ZR=+—H BEEHFLH
EHEPISEXVERSE 2 R 30 fBIE A T aliEs
REIEHEMEICHRERTE < E i
B ARERED - BEROEF 2 ER
KEEZAT GFARRIEEREIBITHA
E) mT:

Percentage of the Company’s

issued share capital

BREER FRisRHEEE BELAFERTREESHL
EllL (Note) 397,200,000 19.46%
BN (HeE)

Applied Component Technology Carporation 324,340,000 15.89%

BENRRHERAE

Note: The shares held in the nome of EllL are duplication of the shares held by the
director, Mr. Wong Hoi Wong.

Save as disclosed above, as ot 31 March 2004, there was no person
(not being the directors and chief executives of the Company] who had
any inferests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debeniures of the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required fo be

kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

Hier: RENHUIZEREZRDESEIIE
TEMBEEBRR LG -

BREXEEEN  RITTEOF=ZR=+—
B BEEOALT GEARREERIES
BAB) BEESREEGRIEXVERELR
SABFSCAT HEHF R EEHIE I361F
MEBFE ZECMATRCSR AR ERG -
BERNIEF CERANEER
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EEEHRE

Maonagement Shareholders’ Interests

Save as disclosed under the seclions headed “Directors” and Chief
Executives’ Inferests in Securities of the Company” and “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests” above, as at 31st March, 2004, no other person
was individually and/or collectively entitled 1o exercise or control the
exercise of 5% or more of the voting power at general meetings of the
Company and was able, as a practical matter, to direct or influence the

management of the Company.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 50.94% of the total purchases of the Group
and the purchases from the largest supplier included therein accounted

for approximately 17.72%.

The sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 66.57% of the tolal sales for the year and the sales fo the

largest customer included therein accounted for approximately 41.69%.

None of the directors, their respective associates and shareholders of the
Company [which fo the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company] had any interest in any of the

five largest customers and suppliers of the Group for the year.

Connected Transactions

Details of connecied Iransactions under the GEM Listing Rules during the

year are sef out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Competing Interests

None of the directors, the subsiantial shareholders or the management
shareholders (os defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interesis in
any business which competed with or might compete with the business of

the Group.

SEERNZRL
B X [EEREBFTHRASREATES
2 B EEREZER | BOFEE
50 RoBERF=A=+—A - HEH
AL ERERR K ERREADLER
FABTBSSRU LT RERBER -7
RAATERIEHETNEETES -

FEEFRUEEHE

FA - AARELIAREBMERBEAS
BRMBEEEL) 50.94% - MESKAHERA
TREREERNG® 17 72% -

AEEBRIAEFPNHEERFREHEER
B 66.57%  MBEREFPHHEERNAD
471.69% »

BEEMAM FERRFIDETHRE S% A
trER RESIZBBATRERRKR
o RFARBEAEREADLATSRHE
FER A (T

BERZS
ST 2 8RR LR RRITARE R 55
BRAMHEBRENE ) -

wmeE

BEIHNEE ZERFRIEEERR (B
HEBARBRLTRE) EETRAZETR
Al REIR I BT A @I -

il
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Directors’ Repeort

Sponsor’s Inferesis

As updated and notified by the Company’s sponsor, CSC Asia Limited
["CSC"], neither CSC nor any of ifs directors, employees or associates
had any interests in any shares of the Company or any member of the
Croup, or any right to subscribe for or to nominate persons to subscribe
for the shares of the Company or any member of the Group as at 3 1st

March, 2004.

Pursuant to the sponsorship agreement dated 19th July, 2001 entered
into between the Company and CSC, CSC will act as the Company’s
continuing sponsor for the period from 27th July, 2001 to 31st March,

2004,

Compliance with Rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing
Rules

The Company has complied with Rules 5.34 1o 5.45 of the GEM Listing
Rules concerning board practices and procedures during the year ended

31st March, 2004.

Audit Commitee

The Company established an Audit Committee in August 2001 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.29 1o 5.32 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The duties of the audit committee are to review and o
provide supervision over the financial reporting process and infernal contral
system of the Group. The audit committee comprises two independent
non-executive directors, namely Ms. Li Zhe and Mr. Ko Ming Tung,
Edward.

During the year, the audit committee has met four times to review the

resulis of the Group.

BRAZEE

BMERBZREABETMER QA
(TEmDM ) PRIRERZ&EHEN  RZF
ZNE=ZA=Z+-8B  BExGAETaE

% BEIMBALHEELALINAEE
IR E R B2 E MO PR TEE
HER A ABIURBMARBELRFNEE
EX=SEIE= VNIl

REALFEERDMR T —FLA+
NEFZ 2 REARZ  HaEMNER =%
Z-F+LAtHHE-ZENE=R=+
—BHEBEEARDEIEEREBA

TR LTHRAE 5.34 E 5.45 &

NAREE-TTNE=R=1+—HILHF
SR-EETEIERRLETRINES 34 £
LS BEHEFERREEERFZR

koo B

°

DEERO
ARRRZEE—FN\ARBAERETR
BIES 2025 32BKUBRERS &
Ei[AEREHE - BREEErBERRE
BHREEAEE  MBEERIEF NS
EHE c ERESCmMEELINTES
RELLTRESHRLEEN -

ERZRENFN  AFBHREHE UFE
BIAEEZ %48 -




Directors’ Report

Auvditors

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, Messrs. PKF, is 1o be

proposed af the forthcoming general meeting.
On behalf of the Board

Lin Chien Hsin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th june, 2004

AR

ARAFTBREERRAS LRZAER &
BRIZRBMRBREFREA -

RREZFE
EF
iz
B —F
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Audliters’ Repert

PKF

26/F, Citicorp Centre
18 Whitfield Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

To the members of
Thiz Technology Group limited

{Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability]

We have audited the financial statements on pages 50 to 107 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial statements
which give a true and fair view, it is fundamental that appropriate

accounting policies are selecied and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those statements and 1o report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards

or accept liability 1o any other person for the contents of this report.

w5
AEY
BB 16H

BEEET L2612

HASRIIFEEAR AT
2ERR

(RESHBIMALZBRAF)

FZEME TR BEZE SOE 107 B2
BE - ZSHRENVEREEFELTERA ISR
FRENMREL -

BEERgRAEEZTHE
RHEEFRQTFZHMBERRT) ERFEE
2B EREZSEERLOTF IV BEEE
B BRNBRMAEEZGTEE LEE
BERZESETEE -

BERFEHBUER  TERZTBRREE
Mgt BASh - A EE 2 BmE N EE LA
B o AREEME AR ARE AT - HIEM
HiATE FlFABEREE -
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BB RS

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounis
and disclosures in the financial statemenis. [t also includes an assessment
of the significant estimates and judgements made by the direciors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate 1o the Company’s and the Group’s circumstances,

consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as io obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order o provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial staiements are free from matericl missiatement. in forming our
opinion, we also evaluated the overall adeguacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides

a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company's and the Group's affairs as at 3 1st March, 2004
and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PKF
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28th June, 2004

BRzER®

AZHEDRBEESHO AR ZEH
LRETERTIF - ERBERFEAMES.
ABZEMBRATHBENNEEEREY

ZBE  NeEHEEENEHMBHRRE
PR{EZ EREETFAME - PARA 2@ HE
ELES BERRE EREZABER

RECERERLRHBRBELSEHEE -

ARZBENE R BIFEITEAL TR - LA
BREAZENARLTEZEARBEERE
5 UREGSRDEE AMBHEREETF
EBEAERRL - (FHA BT - £FH
ERE  ARBANVTDAEMBREMEE
RERELRERH - AEBERERML
BZIFEATARRERSERER -

BR
FRZEMBRUBHRRENEERDFIHE
7 BARE FEENR-TTNEZAZ
T-REER BRI REREEREZ
EFEZERRRRRE  WRREER
Gz WERTLRER -

RBPEEtEHEH R
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Consolidated Income Stafement melaEE
For the year ended 31si March, 2004 BE _ETMFEZA=+—AUFE
5 2004 2003
D’_‘I:‘:\&/
1% —2ETmsg ZETE=F
& Note HK$’000 HK$'000
s Bzt FBT FHT
8
E Turnover BEERE 4 37,415 64,152
% Cost of sales HER A (15,850) (15,384)
O
&
2 Gross profit EF 21,565 48,768
E Other revenue AU A 4 746 422
0
s Provision for doubtful debts REEE (13,048) (11,109
—
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIEER (3,259) (3,831}
General and administrative expenses — 8 R7TIE A (19,257) (27,194)
(Loss)/profit from operations e (BR) aF (13,253) 7,056
Finance costs BEK R (100) {20)
Share of profit of a joinily FEfE — BT %
controlled entity el - 09
{Loss}/ profit before tax BERT (BR) i8R 5 (13,353) 7135
Tax HE 8(al - -
[Loss)/profit aftributable to shareholders XML (EE) /HF @ (13,353) 7,135
Dividend f% 2 10 - -
{Loss|/earmnings per share Bk (EB) BF 1
50 - Basic |in cents) =& () (0.73) 0.43
foterslete
Jis
erooo — Diluted {in cents) —gsE () {0.69) 0.43
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Consolidared Balance Sheet REEEBER

At 31st March, 2004 R-ZEF@F=A=4+—H
2004 2003 8
ZBENE bt ¥ S ¢
Note HK$/000 HK$000 3
ftsE FET FET <
5
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBAE &
Fixed assets BE&E 12 1,613 1,603 o2
Product development costs EmFA AR 14 5,862 2,633 g
Goodwill S 15 - - Z
7,475 4,236
CURRENT ASSETS mbAE
Inventories FE 16 645 302
Trade receivables FEUYBRIR 17 34,892 31,287
Other receivables, deposits H ith FEMRUIR -
and prepayments e RIENRIE 2,918 3,338
Amount due from a related company B —EEMBEQFHE 18 - 6
Cash and bank balances BERBITER 19 2,542 1,212
________ 40,997 36,145
DEDUCT: Fo
CURRENT UABIUTIES b3 1 B=R 1]
Trade payables FEERIA 20 564 540
Other payables, accruals and EAERFUR -
deposits received REFIERB WIS 4,376 2,000
Amounts due to directors ENEERIE 21 4,001 3,345
Tax payable FERIRIA 12 12
__________ 9,043 59006
NET CURRENT ASSETS HBREBRE 31,954 30,239
39,429 34,475
REPRESENTING:— ¥
SHARE CAPITAL il S 22 20,411 16,461
RESERVES =] 24 5,018 14,014
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS BRERE 25,429 30,475
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBER
Proceeds of convertible notes WA R R R
received in advance FRSRIE 25 10,000 -
Convertible notes IR &7 26 4,000 4 000
39,429 34 475
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28th  RZZEEMESNAZFNAKEETSHER
June, 2004 BT
Lin Chien Hsin Wong Hoi Wong
HE2w TH®=
Director Direcior

EF EF
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Balonce Sheet

EEEER

At 31st March, 2004

R-FEME=Z/F=+—H

2004 2003
ZZ=2ME TEEDF
Note HKS$’000 HK$'000
itk FET FETL
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERDAE
Fixed assets BIEEE 12 82 142
Interests in subsidiaries Er{h B ne 2 s 153 38,702 31,382
38,784 31,504
CURRENT ASSETS MORE
Other receivables, deposits H it Y ERIE -
and prepayments 17& RIEMRIE 1,120 1,037
Cash and bank balances RERIRTEF 5 28
Y125 1,085
DEDUCT: & :
CURRENT LABILITIES mhasE
Other payakle and accruals H b BT AR BT ROA 527 380
Amount due to a director Ef—BEEHIE 2] 49 238
_____________ 376 618
NET CURRENT ASSETS mORERE 549 447
39,333 31,971
REPRESENTING: — a2
SHARE CAPITAL . 22 20,411 16,461
RESERVES %% 24 4,922 11,510
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS BERES® 25,333 27 971
NON-CURRENT UABILITIES ERBAR
Proceeds of convertible notes AW R R AR E R
received in advance JSIECE O] 25 10,000 -
Convertible notes AR R 26 4,000 4,000
39,333 31,971

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28th  RZBTMFERAZ+N\BEEZTSHER
June, 2004 PR

Lin Chien Hsin Wong Hoi Wong
HEH Fule
Director Director

EF EF




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HEBHERER

For the year ended 3 1st March, 2004

HE—FENF= A=+ —BUIEE

2004 2003 0
—ZZNF ZET=F S
Note HK$7000 HK$'000 N
HisE FET FET é
CASH FLOWS FROM BEEBZRaRE C—E
QOPERATING ACTIVITIES g
<C
{Loss}/profit before tax BRI (BB a5 (13,353) 7,135
Adjustment for— HE
Interest income BT A (2) {8)
Interest expenses FERx 100 20
Provision for doubtful debts RERBHE 13,048 11,109
Bad debts written off B ERE - 560
Impairment loss of goodwill [EEd % - 686
loss on disposal of fixed assets HERCEEER - 288
Share of profit of a jointly FE1E — B A RE S
controlled entity B ERT - (99)
Depreciation E 577 561
Amortisation s 943 679
Operating profit before working EiEESEHETZ
capital changes gl 1,313 20,931
Increase in inventories FEEM (343) (285)
Increase in trade receivables U BR IR IZ 0 (16,653) (37,105)
Decrease/(increase) in other HuEIRIE - 1e
receivables, deposits BIEMEIER L, ()
and prepayments 420 (556]
Decrease/(increase) in amount X —HEREEQR
due from a related company FEREL, (Em) 6 (6]
Decrease in pledged time deposit DR BRTF ROR A - 300
Increase/|decrease) in EATEBRIEE N, CR)
frade payables 24 (366)
Increase/(decrease) in other HibfENEIE « FEET
payables, accruals and FOERDWIES
deposits received i, CAL) 2,267 [74)
Increcse in amounts due to directors fEE B FRIEE M 746 3,280
Effect on foreign exchange SNEEREE 2
rate changes 9 ]
Cash used in operations BMEZLEMARS (12,211) (13,880) 53
Interest received BUF S 2 8 Bon00
O
c
NET CASH USED IN BREBEFARSPE 03600
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (12,209) (13,872)

R s T et 3 T
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Consolideted Cash Flow Statement (continved)

GERERER (£

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM BREDZRLRE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Advance to a jointly controlled entity

Payments o acquire fixed assets HNEBRTEEZMTR
Sales proceeds of fixed assets HERBEEEFSNE
Product development expenditure EmRERX

incurred

BE-HHBRRZ

Net cash outflow from acguisition

of a subsidiary Bant 38
NET CASH USED IN BREINMARS B
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM RAZDZR&NR

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BITHR D FRISRUE
BineITREE

FEW TR RIBFTE R

Share issue expenses
Proceeds of convertible notes
received in advance

Issue of convartible nofes BITAIRREF
Repurchase of shares BERG
NET CASH FROM FINANCING MEETHLRETNH
ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE /(DECREASE) IN HeRA&SERAEAM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S (RD) B8
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REMZHER
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR Re®EER

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R=EZA=+—-HZBR&R

AT 315T MARCH Re®EER
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND FReRReFEHFERK

CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances He RFTHET

Note
ffzE

BT —EARESIRE

27

A

BE_FTME=A=+—HIFE

2004 2003
—ZTmEFE —FE=F
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TET

- (170]

(654) (1,419

8 105

(4,113) -

- (48]

_________ (4,759) 11,532
9/086 -

(788) -

10,000 -

- 4,000

- (1,999]

_________ 18,298 2001

1,330 {13,403

1,212 14,615

2,542 1,212

2,542 1,212




Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

For the year ended 3 1st March, 2004

Ai 1.4.2002

Repurchase of shares

Exchange odjusiment
on franslation of the
financial statements of
foreign subsidiories

Profit aitributable 1o

shareholders

At 31.3.2003 and
1.4.2003

Rights issue of shares
Share issue expenses
Exchange adjusiment
an translation of the
financial siotements of
foreign subsidiories
loss aifribuiable to

shareholders

At 31.3.2004

HERABE)R

 RE-TEmFSAS+-AUFE

Capital
Share Share redemption Special  Exchange Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve losses Total
REEE
2.3 RAER =37 R R ZHBR @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET TET FET
[Note 24fi))
(Wit 240))
RZBEZ
mA—-R 16,545 19,573 - 360 [11,145) 25,338
BEBMG (84) {1.915) 84 - (84) [1,999]
BEE I
Boalg
BEEZ
EAEER - - - - - |
R EE
sl - - - - 7,135 7,135
RZFE=
=R=+—8
RZTEZ
mA— 16,461 17,658 84 360 (4,004} 30,475
HREA 3,950 5,136 - - - 0,086
BHBETRR - (788) - - - [788]
TS IR
BRaEs
BHREZ
ERHEE - - - - - ®
BREG
i - - - - (13,353) (13,353
RIZBHEHE
ZAZ+-8 20,411 22,006 84 360 (17,447) 25,429
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Neftes o Financial Stafements

BRI

For the year ended 3 1st March, 2004

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law
[Cap. 22 law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands on 6th December, 2000.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited [the "GEM”)
on 27th July, 20017,

11th October, 2002, the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission approved the establishment of Llevel 1 American
Depository Receipt {"ADR"] program for the Company's shares in

the United Stotes of America.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies adopied in the preparation of

these financial statements are set out below:~

(a) Basis of preparation
These financial sialements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and comply with Siatements of Standard Accounting Practice
["SSAPs"] issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants
["HKSA"} and are prepored under the historical cost

convention.

In the current year, the Group adopted SSAP 12 (revised)
"Income taxes” issued by the HKSA which is effective for the

current year's financial statements.

BE_EEmNE=ZA=1+—Hi4FE

1. ®RIIFEE
ARBPRZBERE+L _ARARE
HMERBSRE(-AR—FEIRE
FIE22F - Bi5a RigF]) ERSE
BEMK I AERRERAT

ERBBROR_FE-FLAZ T+
AEEAMERIHAAERLFEER
(TRIER]) £ -

“EECETRA+—H - REESFR
SZESHERRRBRONERR
VR -REEESFERE (JADR])
& .

2. EEONHE
BRI RERFRG T TEHE
FRFIOT

(a) HwEB%E
B RRIRBEE LB ERA
RE LTATEAEHNLE
(IEEgstmog)) BHze
FEBER ([ EBE
8l1) - MBHRERIRELRS
ERIRE -

REFE ARERAREEE

SEIRERI B ERERFE
1258 (EEe]) TA1ER] - i

REERZHBREAY -
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For the year ended 3 1si March, 2004

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

{a)

(b)

Basis of preparation {confinued)

The principal effect of the implementation of SSAP 12 (revised)
is in relation o deferred tax. In previous years, partial provision
was made for deferred tax using the income statement liability
method, i.e. o liability was recognised in respect of fiming
differences arising, except where those timing differences
were not expected fo reverse in the foreseeable future. SSAP
12 [revised) requires the adoption of a balance sheet liability
method, whereby deferred fax is recognised in respect of all
temporary differences between the carmrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits, with
limited exceptions. The adoption of SSAP 12 {revised) had

no significant effect on the results for the current or prior

accounting periods.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial siatements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to

31st March each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up fo the effective date o
disposal, as appropriate. All significant intra-group

transactions and balances have been eliminated on

consolidation.

HE-FEME=A/A=+—RAIUIFE

20

EEEHRE (B

(a)

(b)

RHUBE (8)
ETEEBENF 257 (EE
D) REIEREERNRIERA -
RBEFE  REFETIAUE
KRBEEERIBE - AINESE
TRt ERNERAR  EEE
HERER] REREN g8
ZIERGIFN - EFEBEAFE
1258 (IERT) AERBEER
ERREE  BERERN B
HREERBBEEMBRRAZE
EEEEREERTE NP
FERZEENEME 2 EREE
REDEERERZ 5 - R0
SEBERNFE 25 (BiEE) &
THEBT G HRE AT E
ENA -

mAEREE
SERUBBRRBAELNAT AN
BRABEEF=A=1+—H1L
ZEBHR -

RERUBREEZHBLEE
ACARRRBENREREEY
RoERHLE (ERBAM
E)EFAREWERA - £ER
RAIEMAEEAR ZREHDIR
RERBEHE -
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For ihe year ended 3 1st March, 2004

2,

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(d)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration
er the attributable share of the fair value of separable net

assets of a subsidiary af the date of acquisition. Goodwill is

stated in the consolidated balance sheef of cost less aggregate

amortisation and any impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated on a straight line basis over ifs

estimated usefu! life of not more than 20 years.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within @
particular economic environment {geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from

those of other segments.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items direclly offributable 1o o segment as well as
those that can be allocated on o reasonable basis to that
segment. Segment revenue, expenses, assefs and lighilities
are determined before intro-group balances and intra-group
iransactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation
process, except fo the extent that such intra-group balances
and fransactions are between group enterprises within a single

segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
infangible| that are expected fo be used for more than one

period.

BE

20

FEMFE=A=

—BIHFE

EEDREE

c)

(d)

k3
BEREEAREBELKBERR
EMBARAENEEREZR
FEEZERE - ABRKTRE
SEERIARENGREAER
BEFRINE -

BHAERER T BB 20 £

TR AR E -
2 EH K
DEEAEEAED SUBEER

ERIRB (RH08E) 85
EERBERBERNERIRE
) ZEB Agrﬂ

HEMSEZ ERRERER

°

/\

i
gl

DREEA X BB BER
BERESEARENER X
AEEEERSEEZOE - D
BIRA - Fx > EERBERE
EEEANLRIRESREEERD
AERS (BekREERFZ—)

NRTMZ B R SRIRS -

DEEAREHNEEMES
AEREe ERE AR RS
MR AEMEEKTRE -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

e)

Segment reporting [confinved)|
Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate

assets, borrowings, corporate and financing expenses.

Revenue recognition
Distribution income of linux based software products
developed by the Group is recognised when the right 1o

receive payment is established.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of goods have been

transferred to the buyer.

Income from training service is recognised over the period of

Troining.

Interest income is recognised on a lime proportion basis,
laking into account the principal amounts outstanding and

the interest rates applicable.

BE—TEMFE=A=+—HIFFE

2. EBEGHEIE (&)

(d)

(e)
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2. PRINCIRPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2,

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated af cost less aggregate depreciation
and impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attriibutable costs of bringing
the asset to its present working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after the assets have been
put info operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
the assel, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional

cost of the asset.

The gain or loss on disposal of the fixed assets representing
the difference between the nef sales proceeds and the
carrying amounts of the relevant assefs is recognised in the

income statement.

Depreciation is calculated to write down the costs of fixed

assels to their estimated residual values on a straight line

(f

EEOEEE (&)

EEEERITE

BB E i AR E RRE
BBAK - BENARERER
PEEETCRITERVR IR
FRERBR 2 EFEERBIEK
Ko BERNEFEREE 2R
MEEREENELBEFARE
FH% - HEDSRERETRAR
XHEEERZEAEREESY
ERHEMEN  BAREX T
BEEER  ERZEEZREI
IR o

B EELERRBHEMER
ERERRREEREELE
B R R

FEIR T E R HEUE
(R EETE B ER A ER AR

basis over the following estimated useful lives:— FREEME -

Computer equipment  ~ 3 years R - 3%

Office equipment - 3 years to 7 years WMoEREB — 3FE/EF
Fumiture ond fixtures  — 5 years to 7 vears BEREEE — SEE/F
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{g)

(h)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise over which the Company has
control either directly or indireéﬂy. Control is the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of a company so

as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Invesiments in subsidicries are siated in the Company’s
balance sheet af cost less any impairment losses. Income
from subsidiaries is recognised in the Company's financial
statements on the basis of dividends declared by the

subsidiaries.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged 1o the income siatement as

incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the projects are clearly
defined; the expenditure is separately ideniifiable and can
be measured reliably; there is reasonable certainty that the
projects are technically feasible; and the products have
commercial value. Product development expenditure which

does not meet these criferiar is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are amortised using a sfraight
line basis over the expected economic useful lives of the
products, subject io a maximum period of five vears
commencing in the year when the producis are put into

commercial production.

EE-_FEME=A=+—HIFE

2,

EEONEE (&

(9)

(h}

MELR

HIB A RIEA DRI R EES R
1ERIEDEE - TR A REET
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RIBAT 2R AR
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Netes fo Financial Statements

BB

For the year ended 3 Ist March, 2004

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

(i)

(k)

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss
is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an assef or
its cash-generating unit exceeds ils recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in the income stafement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is defermined on a weighted average basis and
includes all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realiscble value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary

to make the sale.

Leases

leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
income sfafement on a straight line basis over the ferms of

the relevant leases.

EEr ETNFZA=+—HILFE

2, EBOMESE (&)

(i)

(i)

(k)
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

U}

{m)

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, annual leave entitlements and the
cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered by

employees of the Group.

Obligations for contributions to refirement plans, including
contributions payable under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"] ceniral pension scheme, are recognised

as an expense in the income statement as incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonsirably commits itself to terminate
employmeni or o provide benefils as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without

realistic possibility of withdrawal.

When the Group granis employees options to acquire shares
of the Company for nil consideration, no employee benefit
cost or abligation is recognised af the dofe of grant. When
the options are exercised, equity is increased by the amount

of the proceeds received.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes are separately disclosed and regarded as
liabilities unless conversion actually occurs. The associated
finance cost is recognised in the income statement on an
accrual basis while the associated costs of issue are charged

immediately to the income statement when it is incurred.

HE_FEFWNFE=R=1T—HILFE
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Thiz Technology Group limited RIS RIBHE AR A 5]

For the year ended 3]st March, 2004

2,

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of o
past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to seftle the obligation. If the effect
is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tox rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where

cppropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future event not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is
not recognised becouse it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be reguired or the amount of

cbligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent fiability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
rrobability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,

they will then be recognised as a provision.

I E_FENEFEZ A=+ —EILFF
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2, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

(p)

{q)

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are franslated
into Hong Kang dollars af the exchange rafes ruling at the
iransaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated inio Hong Kong dollars
at the market exchange rafes ruling af the balance sheet
date. Differences on foreign currency translation are dealt

with in the income statement.

The consolidated financial statfements are prepared by using
the net investment method such that the balance sheets of the
Company's overseas subsidiaries are translated in Hong Kong
dollars af the market exchange rate ruling at the balance
sheet dote, while their income statements are tfranslated aof
the average exchange rate for the year. Any exchange
differences arising on such iranslation are dealt with in the

exchange reserve.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
vear. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes ifems of income and
expense that are faxable or deductible in other years, and it

further excludes income statement items that are never faxable

and deductible.

BE-_TEMF=A=+—HIFFE
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For the year ended 3 1st March, 2004

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

Income tax {continued)

Deferred tax is the tax expected o be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial siatements and the corresponding
iox boses used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or negative
goodwill) or from the initial recognition {other than in @
business combination] of other assets and liabilities in a
fransaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed af
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the licbility is setled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt

with in equity.

BE_FENEF=A=1T—HIFE
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For the year ended 3 1st March, 2004 HE-EEMF=A=+—HITFE
2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES /coniinved) 2. EBOHEE (B) i
() Related parties ) BEEAL 3
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the e —75 "] B RIS A ‘3
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other porty or — SRR RS ERER Cé‘
exercise significant influence over the other party in making FEER-FITEEAFE N T%_
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered SR 7 $E A A A IR BB R B £
o be related if they are subject fo common control or common REAXBEEN  ALIALT
significant influence. WRARREAL -
(s)  Cash equivalents (s) BEEEEH
Cash equivalents cre shortterm, highly liquid investments ReEERBEUBRSERAE
which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and HEBBREZSERBREBRR
which are subject lo an insignificant risk of changes in value. & AEEEDHRRTK-
3. SEGMENT INFORMATION 3. SWEE
Segment information is presented by way of two segment formats: DEEHNURESREERR (IR
(i) on @ primary segment reporting basis, by business segment; EBNBEZ2EENBEREE L)
and [ii} on a secondary segment reporting besis, by geographical RSB REDBRIRER -
segment.
The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed FEBREEBRIBEAEBUEER
separately, according fo the nature of their operations and the FBHERMBBEORE B
producis and services they provide. Each of the Group’s business BE - AEASEEHERREER
segments represents a sfrategic business unit that offers products R REERERN - WHAME
and services which are subject fo risks and returns that are different BoRzRBEQHRIE - ZHNEE
from those of other business segments. Summary details of the FERT
business segments are as follows:~
(@)  the software development segment engages in development o] BXMFIESE - EF Linux
and sales of Linux based software products; EmHERES 57
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004 Bz —EEMNE=R=+—H/FEF
e 3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 3. SETE (&)
%ﬂ b} the computer products segment engages in B2B ecommerce b) BERERSE AEFEEEEZ
E‘i in respect of trading of computer products; and EFEEAANFTERERE
e
= B R
T’g
=
E [c)  the training service segment engages in the provision of lc] HBIIRBDE - FBH Linux B
=
= fraining services on Linux based software. Z AR
5
O
§ In defermining the Group's geogrophical segments, revenues are FEETAERZMESENE - A
£ attributed o the segments based on the location of the customers, TREFHREMES  BERIREE
L)
*iN) and assels are attributed fo the segments based on the location of FREMEI S -
= the assefs.
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For the year ended 3 1st March, 2004

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

{a) Business segments

The following tables present revenue, {loss)/profit and certain

assets, liabilities and expenditure information for the Group's A

business segments.

Segment revenue:~
Sales fo

exiermal customers

Segment tesulis

Interest income
Unallocatad income

Undllocated expanses

{Loss|/profit from operaions
Finance cosls
Share of profit of o jointly

controffed eniry

{loss)/profi before ox

Tox

Jloss|/profit aiiributable

io shoreholders

FCEEMNFEZ R AUFR

3. LETTEE (&)
o) EBHE

E BERHEXEH-

TREFNEEERFHE D 2
(BE) /JaffETE

Software Computer Training
development products services Consolidated
BARR REER et &8
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
ZSZME —TT-F ZTOMF -TT=F ZPSME —TT-F ZPENE -TTCE
HK$’000 HK§'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FEx TET TR TERT  TERT  TER  TER  TER
AEA
BEF
SHREF 18,323 47776 15052 16376 4,040 - 37415 44152
NEER (3,047) 10452 (5400} (9.065) (4,200) - (12,647) 10387
MERA 2 8
RARBA 744 414
AREER {1,352) (3753
&g (58) /i8R {(13,253) 70%
BERE {100} 120)
BlE-HER
BHOEER - 99 - - - - - 99
By (58
Vet (13,353) 7,135
e - -
BRER
(B8) /54 (13353) 713

Annual Report 2004 3
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For the year ended 31st Morch, 2004

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved)

{a}  Business segments [continued)

Segman’ assels HERE
Unalloccied assets FARAE
Total assats AELE
Segment liabiltes SHEE
Unal'ocated fiobilies moliatk
Toial fiabifiies RfEE
Other ssgment informeiion: = EfsEEn
Dapreciclion bid-]
Amorisclion 3
Capiic! exoendiivre EARX

L T~ S
FE_EF

mE=ZA=+—HIFEE

3. STEEHE (&)
(o) %BHE (&)
Software Computer Training
development products services Unallocated Consolidated
Lt REZR RHERE *9E B8
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
ZgemE _TT-F ZBBMEF _TT-F ZOBEF ~FTCE ZEINE _TE-£ IGSME _FE=%
HKS'000  AK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS00C HK$/000 HK$'000
fax TAT TR TEx  TEm  TRr FRAm  TET TR TER
38,907 33938 5,632 4674 2,706 - - - 47245 38,632
- - - - - - 1,227 1,749 1,227 1,749
38,907 33938 5632 4474 2,706 - 1,227 1749 48,472 40,381
17,666 7200 2,648 1123 578 - - - 20,892 6,332
- - - - - - 23 1,574 2151 1.574
17,666 729 2,648 Liz3 578 - 2,15 1,574 23,043 9,906
13 358 10 97 296 - 38 i 571 561
762 504 146 175 35 - - - 943 679
1,520 1,240
3,964 927 290 458 572 - - 89 4,826 1,474
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For the year ended 3 1st March, 2004

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b)  Geographical segments

3. SEWHEHE &)

The following tables present revenue, assets and expenditure

information for the Group's geographical segments.

Segment revenyz:-
SREA:
Sales io
extemal cusiomers

HETRRER

Orher segment informoion -
ERAEAN
Segment assels

RERE

Copiic! expenditure
Eusek

I8emE _TEC-F ZBBME —TEc=E

2003

Igemg —¥R=%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000

-
At

HKS'000 HKS$'000

47

303

3,562

781

s R ST T

Ly S5t LU ES

E-TEME-AT—HUIFR

TRESIAEBZIIFE D 2 W
A BERRZEM -

B
#
<
O
Q
™~
o
Qo
O
os
T
5
I
<
<<

SR E

HK3'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

o
e
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For the year ended 3 1st March, 2004

4. TURNOVER AND REVENUE

Turnover represents the invoiced value of computer products sold

and Group’s linux based software products disiributed and training

income, after allowances for returns and discounts and net of value-

added tox.

An analysis of turnover and other revenus is set out below:-

Turnover:—
Distribution of Group's Linux
based software products
Sales of computer products

Training income

Other revenue —
Interest income

Sundry income

Total ravenue

EES
Lnux B E &
HEERER
=HTON

EABUTA
AMBUA
FETRWA

LN k=2

BE-FEMFZAZ+—ALERE

@)O

RERRER ELETRERRNELR
B linux B ERRBINRAZER
& -

ERBEREMBADFTNT

2004 2003
—EBNE TEE=HF
HKS$’000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

18,323 47,776
15,052 16,376
4,040 -
37,415 64,152

2

744 414
746 422
38,161 64,574
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For the year ended 3 1st March, 2004

{LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

(Loss]/ profit before tax is arrived at after

charging/crediting):—

Cost of inventories sold

Cost of services rendered
Depreciation

less: Amounis capilalised as product

development costs

Amorisation of product development costs

Minimum operating lease payments:—

land and buildings

Servers

less: Amounis capitalised as product

development costs

Auditors’ remuneration

Stalf costs (excluding directors’
emoluments):—
Salaries and other benefits

Pension contributions

less: Amounts capitalised as product

development costs

Impairment loss of goodwill
Interest on convertible notes
Provision for doubiful debts
Bad debts written off

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Net exchange loss/[gain)

T e

5. RRE (BN &H

WA (B51R) RA

&Ik GEA)

I IE 2

DEFERA

RUEIRIEACR

e

B REMBEERAR
BRRERZEE

R AR
REWEZHE
HEFER
T REF
{m AR 28

B RERFBEKAE
BREXRZEH

TR

BTHA (TEREES
#e)
HE RHEMET
EREHEF

o REMMERAE
BEERZEHR

EERE
ARERERE
RIEEE

[BR it
HEETEERSSE
ERER (W) B8

2004 2003
—EB2EmE —EFE=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FET
15,032 15,033
818 -
636 561
(59) -
577 561
943 679
2,043 3,130
27 23
2,070 3,153
(255) -
1,815 3,153
200 228
12,483 12,608
481 342
12,964 12,950
(2,197) -
10,767 12,950
- 686

100 20
13,048 11,109
- 560

- 288

207 (@)
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For the vear ended 3 1st March, 2004

E 6. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES” EMOLUMENTS 6. TERBEEI&
% 2004 2003
é@% —EZTNME —EE-F
e
= HK$°000 HK$'000
H e
= FHT FiET
-
£
£ la) Directors ) EE
%‘ Executive directors:— HITEE -
% Fees e - -
—g Other emoluments B &
‘§ Salaries and other benefits e REmER 1,622 1,927
E Pension contributions RkeBZ 12 14
iy
=
1,634 1,241
Independent non-executive directors:— BIUERITEE
Fees He 120 180
Total directors’” emoluments EEPERE 1,754 2,121
During the yeor, one [2003: one) of the executive directors FER - —FZ(ZFEE=F: —5)

did not receive any emoluments. The other two [2003: two)
executive directors received emoluments of approximately
HK$1,127,000 (2003: HK$1,039,000), and
HK$507,000 (2003: HK$468,000) respectively. The
executive director resigned in 2003 received emoluments of
HK$434,000 in the previous year. The newly appointed
independent non-executive director received emoluments of
HK$15,000. The other two (2003: two) independent non-
executive directors received emoluments of HK$60,000
{2003: HK$90,000) and HK$45,000 [2003: HK$90,000)

respectively.

RITES U BRETAME - 5
SNRE (ZETR=F  BE)
TEED2HNWRERME QO
1,127 000%7T (ZET=F:
1,039,000/&7) % 507,000
T (ZEBEZF 468,000 %
JT) c RIBRZEREZHT
BEE FEUEEE 434, 00073
7T BT ZBIENITESRN
HB& 15,000 87T - BifRA
(ZZ2=F : MB)BEILIFNT
EE8) 9 R EENE 60,000 %
T (ZEE=F : 90000 T)
K 4500087 (ZFT=F:
Q0,000787T) o
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For the yeor ended 31st March, 2004 BE_FTMNF-A=+—HIFE
6. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continved) 6. BEBRERMSE (&) i
(a) Directors [continued) (a) EE (&) S
The emcluments of the direciors were within the following BEEMENFUTEE CC\D’C
bands:~ EL
g
Number of directors <J:E
EEAR
2004 2003
—sznE “EE=F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 EZ 1,000,000 %L 5 5
HK$ 1,000,007 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 2
1,500,000 # 7T 1 ]
(b)  Five highest paid employees b) EEBEHEER
During the year, the five highest paid employees included EFR DEESHERBERE
two (2003 three) executive directors of the Company, defails (ZBT=F: =8) ZARHY
of whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of TEE  EEHBEENLEX -
the remaining three {2003: two) highest paid employees Egp=% (Z2T=F  BA)
were as follows:— S5HESEHEWT
2004 2003
—ZTEMmE ZEEZE
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
F#ET THET
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 747 1,079
Pension coniributions RIRSHR 30 19
777 Loos
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For the year ended 3 1st March, 2004

DIRECTORS” AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (confinued)
fb)  Five highest paid employees {continued)
The emoluments of the employees were within the following

band:-

Nil o HK$ 1,000,000

No emoluments were paid by the Group fo the five highest
paid employees, including directors of the Company, os an
inducement to join or upon [oining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

PENSION SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatery Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of those
employees who are eligible to parficipate in the scheme. The MPF
Scheme has operated since 1st December, 2000, Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged fo the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into

the MPF Scheme.

B=E

@D

TE 1,000,000 %7T

ZEERF=R=+—RIUFE

EERERES (B)
b) EEEBRE¥EER (&
ERMe N FLATERE

Number of employees

BRAE
2004 2003
—TETHF —EE=F
3 2

FEBUYERLEESHEER
(BEALRESR) INERE
AEEMASTMATEERZ &R
HEREEZHE -

FEERERARITE B EEN
AHEMBLEARZETEZREEEHR
EEERELBEERNENGS ([
B c BEEHEE-TTT
FHZA-BREN - AEERES
EXFLEAHIERH - REARE
swiEest BRI EREREERER
MRk - RREEHBICEEFRNEL
TEED BAREEESIHER -
AEEMSERITEERZBEHT
EBREEFE -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004

7.

PENSION SCHEME (continued)

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in the
PRC are required fo participate in a cenfral pension scheme
operoted by the local municipal government. The PRC subsidiaries
are required to contribute a percentage of ifs payroll coss o the
central pension scheme. The ceniral pension scheme is responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to alt refired employees
and the Group has no further obligations for the pension payments

on postrefirement benelits beyond the annual contributions.

During the vear, the Group made pension contributions of

HK$489,000 (2003: HK$356,000).

#E

7,

CEFMEIASA—HULFE

Braul (&)
RABRLEZ ARAMBLEZEE
B2 HEBERTERTEE P RIER
it - ZETENB LR AR
ALERRRBAREETEIERER -
PRIEMEBAX M 2BERKE
BZEERE - AREBARER
PN Z RIREEBREE -
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489,000 T (ZTF=F:
356,000&7T) -
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8.

TAX

BE—TEmE=A=+-HUIEE

(o) No provision for profits tax has been made as the Group

has no assessable profits for the year.

Tax lincomel/expense for the year can

be reconciled as follows:—

[Loss)/profit before tax

Tax effect at Hong Kong profits fax rate of

17.5% {2003: 16%)

Tox effect of non-deductible expenses/tax

exempt revenue

Tax effect of unrecognised general
provision for doubtful debts

Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses

Tax effect of utilisotion of unrecognised

tax lossas

x effect of unrecognised

|accelerated)/decelerated

tox allowances

Tax [incomel/expense

8. WE
o BREEEREFELERLRN
R BB FSHELE
e
2004 2003
—BBmE SET=E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
AEFERIE (KA
ZILERRAOT
sRAEAT (E538) R (13,353) 7135
®17.5% (ZEE=%:
16%) 2 EBER
MERFEIHBRTE (2,337) 1,142
FAMFHEE
SHWAZBRERE 692 [4,048)
MABARBRIE—AS
BBIVBEE 270 584
RIERTIEER Y
BETE 1,599 2,324
HRRBABIESRZ
MR E (223) (30)
REER (0NE) ORIE
RHE BT E
(M) 28

HIE RA) /X
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8. TAX [continued)

BEEBEMEZF=F—HIFFE

8. W\ (&)

b} The components of unrecognised deductible/{taxable) b)  REERAIE, (FEEH) B

iemporary differences are as follows:—

Deductible temporary differences
{Note (i)}
Unutilised tax losses
Decelerated tax allowances

Ceneral provision for doubtful debts

Taxable temporary differences
[Note [ii))

Accelerated tax allowances

Notes:

(i} Deductible temporary differences have not
in these financial statements owing lo the absence of cbjective
evidence in respect of the availability of sufficient raxable
profits that are expected io arise to offsef ageinst the deductible

temporary differences. HEE-
The unutilised tax losses accumulated in the PRC and Taiwan FEESE

subsidiaries amounted to HK$17 493,000 (2003:
HK$10,735,000) would expire in five yeors from the
respective year of loss. The unutilised fax losses accumulated
in the Hong Kong subsidiaries amounted to HK$ 17,715,000
[2003: HK$ 16,615,000} can be carried forward indefinitely.

HEENT
2004 2003
—EEmE —EE=F
HKS$000 HK$000
F&T FExT
AHHERMEER
(FieE (i)
RERHIBEE 35,208 27,350
HR R 43 32
RE—BERE 5,193 3,649
40,444 31,031
ERHEREERE
(Wtst (i)
IniRGBIH AR (90) 149)
40,354 30,982
HfsE
been recognised (il BRBRE REBBAEERY

B4 2 FERRIRS A R LA TR EH AT
B EHEER LT E
REBBRENERTOHE S

(TBARREZR

BRRIEEE 17,493,000 #
FT(ZEE=F 10735000
BIL) BREBEBRTER
TENER - EEHELRZR
BZAGABBER

17,715,00087% (ZRE=
F:16,615000%7T) BT &

05 s -

{il  Toxable temporary differences have not been recognised in il HBRERVEREZESYTE

these financial statements owing to immateriality,

R G ERU S RRAE
BULER -

Annual Report 2004 3§
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For the yeor ended 3 1st March, 2004 BE-EEWNE- AT+ —AIUFE
g 9. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 9. BRILIEE (&Y /&
% Of the Group’s {loss}/profit atiributable to shareholders, a loss of ERFE R REE (F98) 5 RE -
E HK$10,936,000 {2003; HK$4,312,000) has been dealt with 10,936,000 81T (Z2F=F:
% in the financial siatements of the Company. 4,312,000 7T) BERARFNE
?‘E BRARIE -
3
E 10. DIVIDEND 10. B
é_ No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during ARFRAFERBREREIREM
i% the year BB e
)
3_2 11. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 17. @ (5BE) /8
N The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share PREE  EREAREE (BB
- for the year is based on the following data:~ BRITIREA T BURETE
2004 2003
—e2EmE —EE=F
HK$7000 HK$'000
FAEIT THET

[Loss)/earnings for the purpose of caleulating HEERESAR

basic earmings per share # (E31E) /&R (13,353) 7,135
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:~ BEfELTAkaTE
Interest on convertible nofes AR R BN B 83 20

(Lloss)/earnings for the purpose of calculating  HHEGREERF
diluted earnings per share # (E18) /'8 (13,270) 7,155
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For the year ended 31si March, 2004 HE_STMF=A=+—HItFE
11. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (confinued) 171. B (BR) 8% (&) ﬁj_
2004 2003 S
O
—2TNE —RE=F <
Q
No. of shares No. of shares ;é'
7 4 BRE 3
<
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  stESRERARF
for the purpose of calculating basic eamings BB RAT I
per share FEpE 1,817,681,993 1,649,251,000
Effects of dilutive potential ordinary shares:~ ErHEERR
NEE
Convertible notes Al ER 104,826,959 20,274,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  TESR#E
for the purpose of calculating diluted eamings  ZHF|AYE BRI
per share RS 1,922,508,952 1,669,525,000
The share options have no dilutive effect for the year because the RAEFE BRETSEEEZE -
exercise price of the Company's share options was higher than the ARANEERENTEESNEIEE
average market price of the shares during the year. A {7 FHHE
81
o000
9}
xS
o
Stslelels)
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12. FIXED ASSETS

(i) The Group (i)

Cost:—
At Tst April, 2003

Additions

Disposals

At 31st March, 2004

Aggregale depreciation:—
Al Tst April, 2003

Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

At 31st March, 2004

Net book value:~

At 31st March, 2004

At 31st March, 2003

RER

PR

>

e

>

EE

i

=i
m

4
4

(1

1D

R-2EmF
=ZA=+-H

T E
i
mA—H
KEENE
HE#E

-

3

F

R-ZEmE

=RA=+—H

BREEE ¢
R-ESHFE
=A=+—H

i

1]
1]

g

A

A

+

*
—H

BE-FENFI A= —AULTE

12. BEDE

Furniture
Computer Office and
equipment equipment fixtures Total
ma= FEHEE
L] Eed ] KE #3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
THET FET TET TET
1,099 856 349 2,304
184 370 100 654
- (13 - {13)
1,283 1,213 449 2,945
434 209 58 701
335 108 193 636
- (5] - {5)
769 312 251 1,332
514 901 198 1,613
665 647 291 1,603
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004 BE_EEMNF=A=+—A14FE
12. FIXED ASSETS (confinved) 12. HERE (&)
Furniture
Computer Office and
equipment equipment fixtures Total
WMoE EER
ERER T ] ®HE “et
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET
lil  The Company iy ARAE]
Cost:— R
At Tst April, 2003 RIFL=F
MmA—H 135 22 57 214
Disposals k= - (?) - (9)
At 31st March, 2004 R-STNE
=RA=+—H 135 13 57 205
Aggregale depreciation:— REtie
At Tst April, 2003 R-TE=
mA—H 56 Q 7 72
Charge for the year REFHFE 40 5 M 56
Written back on disposals HERED - {3 - 5]
At 31st March, 2004 R-ZETHME
ZRA=+—H 96 9 18 123
Net book value:— BREEE -
At 31st March, 2004 RISEME
=A=4+—~H 39 4 39 82
At 31st March, 2003 RIFTZF
=ZA=+—H 79 13 50 142
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004 BE _FTONF=RF=+—HtFF
= 13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13. BHGREATZER
jéé 2004 2003
—EEMFE ~EE=F
=
5{ HKS$'000 HK$000
= FET FHET
-
QL
=
é_ Unlisted shares, at cost LMD - EAA 21 2]
5 Amounis due from subsidiaries FEARF B B3RS 48,284 31,361
T~
8 Amount due to a subsidiary ERHB A FFIE (3) -
o
5
2L
N 48,302 31,382
- Provision for impairment losses B (9,600) -
38,702 31,382
The amounts are interestfree, unsecured and have no fixed terms EREFEIRE BERRITERETE
of repoyment. BIRE

&
[elejelele]
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For the year ended 3 1st March, 2004 HE_TEAF=A=+—HI-FF
13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 13. RERBLATZER (&) i
The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:— MEBARIZFEWT 3
o
P
Nominal %—
o
Place of value of issved e
incorporation/ ordinary shares/  Percentage of 5(
registration registered equity attributable
Name and operations capital to the Company Principal activities
B, CRITHER, X4F
£ HfRERBE EMRZEE 8113 =52 ) 4 TERH
Directly Indirectly
BE ik 4
Thiz Technology Group Holdings Brifish Virgin islands UsS$100 100 - lavesiment holding
limited {formerly known as RBEXES 100%57T REER
Thiz Technology Group [BVI
Holdings Limited
S HHERRRERLE]
{3718 Thiz Technology
Group [BV)} Holdings Limited)
THIZLINUX INC. British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Invesiment holding
REERES 1 2% REER
THIZBIZ INC. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 lavesiment holding
EBERERS 127 REER
Thiz.Com Inc. British Virgin Islands US$200,000 - 100 Invesiment holding
EBRZEE 200,000 &7 RER
Thiz.Com (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$ 10,000 - 100 Invesimeni holding and
Limited HE 10,000 %7 pravision of

management services
KA TR
TERK
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004

13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

£

PC Media, Inc.

Thiz Design Group Limited

Thizlinux Loboratory Limited

N ZARRERLE

Thizbiz Global Trade Limited

g SRERLF

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
BEM&x
HERRERBE

United States of

America

==
Hong Kong

EE

Hong Kong

50

Hong Kong
=i

BE_TEME=/[=+—-HiIFF

13. MEMBLAEZESE (&)

Nominal
value of issued

ordinary shares/  Percentage of

registered equity attributable

capital to the Company

BRT#AR FoH

EMRFEE BERRESL
Directly Indirectly

HiE g
US$50,000 - 100
Common stock

50,000 2L EER

HK$10,000 - 100

10,000 &L

HK$10,000 - 100

10,000 & 7T

HK$ 10,000 - 100

10,000 % T

Principal activities

FERE

Dormant

TEXRH

Provision of

rnanagement services

REEREH

Development and
sales of Linux based
software products
ard provision of
related fraining
services

FEREE
linux ENHED R
REFEEINRS

Development, sales and
distribution of
tinux based software
and hardware
preducts

P - HERSH
Linux BUEB 1 E &
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13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES [continued) 13. BiERBEARNZHE (&

Name

E-1

Thiz Electronics Company
Limited

ABETRRERAA

The Investment Exchange
Limited

RERBGHRAR AT

The Recruitment Database

Thiz.Com {China) Limited

Insiitute of Thiz Technology

Limited (formerly known as

Thiz Grandmass ERP Systems

Limited)
MERFER AR AT

(ENREETE

FHRARDT)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
SMsir
HERRERBE

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
B0

Hong Kong
£

British Virgin Islands

HBETHE

Hong Kong
HE

Nominal
value of issued

ordinary shares/  Percentage of

registered equity attributable

capital to the Company

BRTHER 3

ERRFEE MR RE S
Directly Indirectly

EE -}

HK$10,000 - 100

10,000 87T

HK$10,000 ~ 100

10,000 % 7T

HK$ 10,000 - 100

10,000 % 7T

Uss$1 - 100

1 &

HK$ 100,000 - 100

100,000 &

Principal activities

EERE

Dormant

TEER

Dormant

EREY

Dormant

TaER

Dormant

TEEL

Provision of training
services on Linux
based software

Rt linx EF 2
ENARH

Annual Report 2004 44§

O
QOO0




Thiz Technology Group limited B1B %1 £ I A IR A 7

88
Slslelele

r\\)

0]

Py
(@l olelele

Noftes o Financial $Statements

M BRNE

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

L

REEREER
SBMERBRRAR

AT«
)N

Beijing Thiztinux
Software Co, limited

ERAEHERS
ZHEERAT

Thizlinux Sofware
{Shenzhen] Company Limited
B (R4 BRLA

Beijing Thiz Junye Sofware
Co, lid.

HREBEERHERDF

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
310
ERRERDY

Taiwan

L
oS

PRC
HE

PRC
G

PRC
%8

Nominal

value of issued

ordinary shares/

registered
capital
BERTHER
BRREEE

NT$ 1,700,000
1,700,000 5 &%

Us$250,000
250,000% 7%

US$150,000
150,000 %7

* This subsidiary with turnover amounted to HK$ 17,545,000 was

not audited by PKF, Hong Kong

HE-TEME=FZT—HIEFEF

13. MERSLEZEE (&)

Percentage of

equity attributable
to the Company Principal activities
08
BisEREST TERE

Directly Indirectly

BE

oF:

100 Scles of computer
products and Linux
based software and
hardware products

HEBREAR
bnux SUEIFEm

100 Nof vef commenced
business

100 Provision of training
services on linux based
software

R Linux ElfE 2

E-Ehliees

100 Provision of iraining
services on
linux based software
Rt lnx B2
SRR
VB AR HEEE 17,545,000

BT W EEREFRHGT
AR
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14. PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT COSTS 14, BERRERE ﬁ
HK$'000 §
FET N
&}
&
Cost:~ RN D_;
At 1.4.2003 N-BE=ENA -8 3,396 <§
Additions iz 41772
At 31.3.2004 R-BEME=A=+—-A 7,568
Aggregate amortisation:— RETHEE
At 1.4.2003 R-IZEZ=FA—R 763
Charge for the year AEREH 043
At 31.3.2004 R-EZTWFE=R=+—8 L1706
Net book value:— R EE -
At 31.3.2004 R-ZENFE=A=+—H 5,862
A 31.3.2003 MR_EE=ZF=ZA=+—H 2,633
15. GOODWILL 15, BT
HK$'000
FHET
Cost:- BN
At 1.4.2003 and 31.3.2004 R-EBZ=FNB—BAR
—EEmME=/F=+—H 686
Aggregate impairment:— HISAREE -
At 1.4.2003 and 31.3.2004 RoEE=FmMA—BR
—sEgmE=A=+—H (686)
Net book value: - BREFE 89

At 31.3.2003 and 31.3.2004

R-BEZF£ZAZ1+-—HR
—EZMFE=A=+—H

QOO0
QO

@]
/\Of\
olslelete}
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16. INVENTORIES

Linux based software products package

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES

BE-FEMEZA=+—ALFE

16. #&

2004 2003

—EEmE TEE=ZE

HK$’000 HK$000

FHET FET

linux MEERES 645 302

The Group's frading terms with its customers are mainly on o cash-

ondelivery basis, except for major customers, where an average

credit period of 30 days is normally given,

The follcwing is an aged analysis of trade receivables [net of

provision] at the balance sheet date:~

0 - 30 days
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
Q1 - 180 days
181 - 360 days

Over 360 days

0% 30H

31 £ 60 H
61 EZ90H
1 E180H
181 £ 360 H
360 B L

17. BEIEE

AEBHEFZZBEFEIELEER
M TBFFRI M TFH308

ZIEER -

REEHE B 27 EUERIE GIRARE) <&

BT ¢
2004 2003
011 |- 3 —ZEE=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
86 3,902
57 3,928
- 3,904
103 11,509
10,194 8,044
24,452 -
34,892 31,287
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18. AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY

The amount was interesiree, unsecured and fully repaid during

the year.

19. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
At 31st March, 2004, included in the Group's cash and bank

balances were amounts of approximately HK$804,000 (2003:
HK$238,000) denominated in Renminbi {"RMB”} and kept in the
PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Setitement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised 1o conduct foreign exchange

business.

20. TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an oged analysis of trade payables at the bolance

sheet date:~

0 - 30 days OZ30H

31 - 60 days 31&2608
181 - 360 days 181 & 360 H

EoFEMFEZARA=F—HILEE

18.

T]@O

20.

Bilr—HEREAERE
BERRENGRE  BEAERREAFA
EZEEE -

ReRBITE

RIZETWE=ZA=+—H %@
ZHRe RPITHEFTRL 804,000 T
(ZTZ=F : 238,000/7L) KMAR
AR GE  SHEMRTE -
ARBATEOEBEMES - A
o REBPENMEEERHRERGE
EELMNEEERE  AREAER
EREETIERH ZRITARAAR
BREMEE -

BEEEE
REBEBZENREZRESITW
T

2004 2003
—ETME —EE-F
HK$7000 HK$'000
FRT FHET
405 16

3 524

156 ~

564 540
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21. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

The amounts are inferestree, unsecured and repayable on demand.

22, SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised:~ EFE
Crdinary shares of HK$0.01 each  BREE 0.01 Az EiRk
At 1.4.2003 and RIZE=FWMA—-HR
31.3.2004 ZZEZHFE=A=+-—8
lssued ond fully paid:- BETRET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each  &AREE 0.01 Btz TiEK
At 1.4.2003 RZEE=ZFTE—HB
Rights issue of shares (Note) HAREIE (BaE)
At 31.3.2004 BR-ZENFZRA=+—H

E-FFMEIASEUER

BRRENRE  BEFRFRER

B8 -
22, B&zs

Number of shares HK$/000
BnWE TH#T
5,000,000,000 50,000
1,646,060,000 16,461
305,054,400 3,950
2,041,114,400 20,411
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22. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: The Company issued 395,054,400 new shares of HK$0.01 each
in the Company at an issue price of HK$0.023 per share by way
of a rights issue in the proportion of six rights share for every twenty
five existing shares held. The net proceeds of the rights issue of
opproximately HK$8,298,000 (representing cash consideration of
HK$9,086,000 less share issue expenses of HK$788,000] are
used for the development of the Group's business in the PRC and fo
provide additional working capital to the Group. All shares issued

rank pari passu with the then existing shares in all respects.

Details of the rights issue of shares are set out in the Company’s

prospectus dated 30th September, 2003,

23. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS
The Company adopted o share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed on 6th July, 2001, for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribuie to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include any fulHime executive director
or employee of a company within the Group. The Scheme shall
remain in force for 10 years from &th July, 2001 during which the
direciors may make offer to grant share options to eligible

participants.

B Z _EEME=RA=+—HIFE

22. BE (B

fEE - ARFAERG R ER0.023%
L2 EITEBHEIT 395,054,400 Ik
FREMF OO Bz - L
AERE-TARBARNIES
NIRERERD - HEERZHAER
THETHH 58,298,000 T (BIR
#RIE 9,086,000 B THAR M H
742 788,000 L) « IERE
SERTEHzEBBREALEDR
REMNEEES - CBIT2ME
BREER 7 BERMNERTE

THEESHS

HRBBRFBHREDFANE
EZENAZTBHBZHRE

2.

23. EBTEEN

FREBENR_ZET-ELAREE
B RBRRPBAREE (TE
g  SrEEERRSFHAREER
MAREREBNAERSHATIELE
BILEE - FEZAERBEALR
EAKEETAREA2BAGTES
BIEE - EA-TT-—F+LAXRA
BER - RETE BRANZHM
MEERBEALRETHRE -
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VNN sdl
00~ ! |
N /-1 - | I (:' . \
7 ) 4 é RS
N - (e L
:/ % "?Li,ﬂux -
-~ LR T

) Nefes fo Financial $Statements PR HRERKEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2004 BE-—EEMNF=A=1—FIFF
e 23. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (confinued) 23. BEHEEHN (2)
%} Pursuant to the terms of the Scheme as amended in accordance RIFFTENER (FKEBRIEIRES L
;L with Chapter 23 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on MARA (TRIXMR EWRRI)) £238
% the GEM [the "GEM Listing Rules”), the maximum number of the (B3T) - BBTEINEAEMIEE
% Company’s shares which can be granted under the Scheme and B2 A RRRNBEEZTEBRAR
2 any other schemes must not exceed 10% of the Company’s shares HEBBRALBEHETRG 10% - MW
%_ in issue af the date of approval and the maximum number of the RAEEI2EARRBATETER2EA
g Company's shares which can be granted fo sach parficipant must T2 ARTRABE RS TEREE
§> not in any 12-month period exceed 1% of the Company's shares in AFIBEITRGI% w8 ZFT—F
E issue with effect from 15t Ociober, 2001 +B— B -
= The consideration for the grant of an option is HK$1 each. An BOBRLZERERERIET @
option may be exercised at any time during a period as determined ERETRESETE BT
by the directors which shall not be less than three years and not 0 MESZ AR IS AR AR IR IFET
more than fen years from the date of acceptance of options offered ER2 v EREB RS ToRE
under the Scheme by the grantee. FEMXTBETF -
. [l Movements in shore options Iy EiEE

Number of options

EERWE
2004 2003
—E2mE —EE=F
At beginning of year F£4) 18,180,000 39,640,000
Acjustment for rights issue of shares FEREBIEEL 2 A 1,984,437 -
Lapsed BRI - (21,460,000}
At 31st March R=ZA=1+—8 20,164,437 18,180,000
94 Options vested at 3 1st March RZA=+—BRE
ISlelelote)
o 2 BB ARE 20,164,437 18,180,000

Q
QCO0T
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For the year ended 3 1st March, 2004 HBETEMF-R=+—HIFE
23. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (continved) 23. BEHEBEMN (#) i
lil  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at balance (il REEGNRABEREEFRTEZ 3
shes dae A2 157K <
2004 2003 g
—senz —zEF 5
Exercise Exercise E
price Number price Number
Date of grant Exercise period per share  of options per share of options
BHan {TERR HRITER REENE BRITEE  EBRENE
HKS HK$
B AT
(Note af (Note a

(Hfiza) (Hito)

30t June, 2002 fo
29th June, 2012

“EE-FAR=1H
E

21st November, 2001 ZE-IERN
ZBE-F+-AZ4 8 ZthH 0.284 20,164,437 0.315 18,180,000
i} No share option was granted during the year [2003: Nil). iy FAYEBERLERE(ZTZ=

£:F) o
liv}  No share option lapsed during the year. Details of share (v FANWEBRERS - LFEEX
options lapsed in prior year are set out as below:— Bz BREEENT

Exercise price Number of
Date of grant per share Exercise period options
#|HEM BERTER fTERIM MianE

HK$

T

30th June, 2002 to 29th June, 2012
2 1st November, 2001 —FE-EXA=+HZE
—EE-F+—F=-+—H 0.315 ZE-ZEXA-+THHE 21,460,000

B e e e R~ S e - . ST U—— |
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For the vear ernded 3 1st March, 2004 B EENES A=A —H I EE

23. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (confinued) 23. BREUEEN (£)
[vi  No options were exercised during the year {2003: Nil), Vv FRTBRBREETE (2B

=FEE) .
Note a:  The exercise price has been adjusted for the rights issue of the Mo TEECHARARZFEZF
Company’s shares on 24th October, 2003. THAZ A Z R ERELE
2 o

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one shore of SHBIRERE THE AENRBAL
the Company. Share options do not confer rights on the holders to Bl IR - BB EE THE A
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting. BAMERRE IR REAGRE -
At 31st March, 2004, the exercise in full of the outsianding share RIBENE=ZA=+—H ' WiBE
options granted under the Scheme will result in the issue of an FHERE 2 MARITEEBREERRT
additional 20,164,437 shares of HK$O.01 each with &« BEIEEINETT 20,164,437 18
corresponding proceeds of approximately HK$5,727,000. BREEOOIAET BN - HEEME

FREEX) 5,727 000 & TT »

24. RESERVES 24, B3
(i}  The Group i) =T&EH
The special reserve of the Group represents the difference TEBZSRBEEETARRG
between the nominal value of the shares of the Company EEERBEARFRGOIEIH
and the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries R ETTIRRE AR AR EAE
acquired pursuant to the reorganisation to rationalise the PRt B R Rl mEZZ
structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the BH o

Company’s shares on GEM.
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24, RESERVES (coniinued)
(i)  The Company

Ai1.4.2002
Repurchase of shares
{Nofe af

Loss for the year

At 31.3.2003 and
1.4.2003

Rights issue of shares

Share issue expenses

loss for the year

At 31.3.2004

H-ZZE-&MNE—H
BORD (Wito)

AEEER

B BT
REFEEIE

R-ZBZHNF=A=+—H

BE -—EENME=A=—HIFE

248, §03 (&)

(i) =2
Capital
Share redemption Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
HEEE
BROER i ZHBER #at
HK$000 HK'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FHET
19,573 - {1,836} 17,737
{1,915 84 {84} {1,915
- - (4,312] (4,312]
17,658 84 {6,232) 11,510
5,136 - - 5,136
{788} - - {788}
- - {10,936 (10,936)
22,006 84 {17,168) 4,922

Annual Report 2004 4F 3§
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24, RESERVES /continued)

{ii)

The Company (continued)

The Company had distributable reserves of approximately
HK$4,838,000 at 31st March, 2004. Under the
Ccmpanies taw {Cap. 22 law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is
distributable 1o the shareholders of the Company, provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividends
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
pcsition to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

Note a:  In prior year, the Company repurchased its own shares
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The shares
repurchased were cancelled and the issued share capital
of the Company was reduced by the nominal value thereof
The premium payable on repurchase of the shares of
HK$1,915,000 was charged to the share premium
account. An amount equivalent to the nominal value of
the shares cancelled was transferred from the income
statement of the Company o the capital redemption

reserve.

L T — SR
EIFETF

mE=F=+—BIEE

24, B (F)

(ii)

Fna (&)

RIEEMF=F=+—H K
REBETUHSIREELD
4,838,000 8T - IRIERSH
ERENE (—AR—FEIFE
228 @ Bima Kigz]) - B
FERESORREEHE - K
RREMEEEZEBTIAZ
B GRIRDEE TS SET
RARBER »

Hlito : REEE  ARBEAREB
BaXPEERARER
iR - M RRDE
D MARADH
TTRRA TR EE B i EE
W e BERGEMEE
1,915,000 # et ARR1S
BEE - BERFEHER
(BEEH R B R F
N EREREERRED
EEA -
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25, PROCEEDS OF CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVED IN

ADVANCE

On 26th March, 2004, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with certain subscribers for the issue of convertible notes
with the principal amounis of HK$ 10,000,000, which bear interest
at the rate of 2.5% per annum with maturity on 2.5th March, 2007
The notes are convertible into new shares of the Company ot an
initial conversion price of HK$0.036 per share (subject to

adjustments]. Details of the issue of convertible notes are set out in

the Company’s announcement on 29th March, 2004,

At the balance sheet date, the Company received the subscripion
money for the aforementioned convertible notes and classified them

as non-current liabilities. The issue of these notes was completed

on 6th May, 2004,

26. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The convertible notes of HK$4,000,000 are unlisted and bear

interest af rate of 2.5% per annum with maturity on 16

2006. The inferest is payable on maturity dafe or within 14 business
days after conversion of the notes. The notes are convertfible info
new shares of the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.036
per share [after adjusting for the rights issue of the Company's

shares on 24th October, 2003) during the period from 17th January,

2003 to

HK$500,000 on each conversion. No early redemption by the

Company or the noleholders is allowed prior to the maturity date.

h January,

16th January, 2006 in amounts of not less than

BE

250

260

—EFWE=[A=+—AIFE

R RERERERE

RIFETNE=ZAZ+KE  AQF
WMETRBANIZRBGR BT
A& EIE 10,000,000 # 7T 2 Al AR
RE - ZMABBRBRFEEER2S

BitE IR-_FR+FZA-+I
HEH - ZERAEEMO0 0308 TT
(A THE) LNTRBEERERD
FRIAR - BITAHERBER 2 FIEEN
ARRRR_FTWNF=FA=+HBT
B2 Rl

AEER  ARTEWRE| LA s
RSB 2RBROE - WA RIERE
BE - ZERBNETEECER-F
TOERARBREK -

TRRELD
18 4,000,000 7t 2 IR IR BB IE

LT FRER25F MITE
NRE—ATARBEE - FEEREEH
BE AR ARERRIMEERAR

1 - BIEARER0.036 87T (&
NRIFTZF+A-+HARRER
MHRBEARRK) 2HBERZ
EE=F-HA+LHE_FTF—
At RBHELABERQRZHE
ML BRZEBTER
500,000 27T - REIHABA] - A7)
HRBFEANGREED -
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27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 27. GER&RERIE
STATEMENT
Acquisition of a subsidiary 2004 2003
IE—FHMEAR —E=EMNE —EE=F
HK$/000 HK$ 000
F#T FET
Net assets acquired: BAZEEZRE:
Fixed assefs BEEgE - 34
Cash and bank balances He MBRITEE - 2
Other payables and accruals B < SR8 e AT ARIE - (@)
Loans from shareholders BRERER - (1,299]
Net identifiable assets and liabilities EAEEREBEFRE - (1,272
Positive goodwill arising on consolidation  SEELZ FHE - 686
- (586)
Satisfied by: HEA
Cash consideration BERE - 50
Interest in a jointly controlled entity PRE— A EEH
EER - (6306)
- (586)

100
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For the year ended 3 1st March, 2004

BE-FENEZA=+OILFE

27, NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 27. SLBRE&RBRME (&)

STATEMENT (continued)
Analysis of net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of acquisition of the subsidiary:-

Cash consideration BerE
Cash and bank balances acquired BAZREMRTER

Net cash ouflow of cash and cash equivalents RERBESEHEIRE
ZIRE R FEE

WENBARZRe MRS FEES

BeRSEAN -

2004 2003
—EENE  -TE=4H
HK$7000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

- 50
- (2}
- 48

Annual Report 2004 3
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For the year ended 3 st March, 2004 BE-FTNFESA=+—OUFE
I 28. OPERATING LEASES ARRANGEMENT 28. BTHEIRE
% As at 31st March, 2004, the Group and the Company had RZZTMF=R=+—H KA&EH
ﬂ% outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases RAERAR T RAETFT 2 TAIHIE AR
3 in respect of land and bulldings, which fall due as follows - BROBERAESER  HEHEM
8
&
= Group Company
g %N &0F
5 2004 2003 2004 2003
;% —EEmE —TT-F —SEME —TToF
~ HK$7000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
=

FET FET FETT FET

Within one year — R 2,135 1,579 332 360
In the second fo E_FERF
fifth years inclusive (BEEEME) 2,575 632 30 150
4,710 2,211 362 510
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group REHEREEARERETRRIGA
and the Company for their office premises and staff quarters. Lleases WAEYRLBEIBERNIZHES -
are negotiated for an average ferm of one fo three years with fixed BOFHRE-E=F  SAXNE

monthly rentals. EEE e
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29. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS

)

On 26th February, 2004, the Company's subsidiary, Thizlinux
laboratory limited (“TLL"} filed o statement of claim with the
High Court of Hong Kong against Prewell Infernational Limited
(“Prewell”) for recovery of arrears in fee from distribution of
linux based software products in the aggregate sum of
HK$50,700,000 (equivalent of USD&, 500,000 together
with damages. On 25th May, 2004, Prewell filed a statement
of defence and a counterciaim against TLL for the sum of
HK$ 15,600,000 (equivalent of USD2,000,000] being
repayment of the distribution fee previously paid by Prewell
io the Group together with damages by claiming that there

were defects in the products supplied by TLL.

Based on the legal advice obtained, TLL has a good prima
facie case in respect of its claim of cutstanding fee. Regording
the defence and counterclaim, it appears that they lack the
necessary particulars as required by the Rules of the High
Court. In particular, Prewell fails 1o plead fime, place, persons
involved and particulars of facts on which Prewell relies to
establish its defence. In respect of the claim thai the products
are defective, Prewell fails io plead time, persons and manners
involved as fo how the notices of defect were given and eic.
In the circumstances, it is premalure to assess the merits of

the counterclaim.

HE-EFMEZFA=+—HIrFF

29. WIRTBZHB

{a)

RZTEMFE_/=+XH &
NEMBATES ZGRAER
nE ([ ER)) mEERSE
FERRZRERME - FPrewell
International Limited ([ Prewell ])
B DELnx MEERBRZ
RE (BEE)  HEE
50,700,000 %% (BER
6,500,000% L) - RZZTEM
ERAZtRE
ERERRPE BRI ER
PRtz ERAREE - mEIRE
BRER15,600,00087T (48
£52,000,000%T)  EABE
B Prewell XA FPAREE 25
#E (EEE) -

Prewell 1232

REMABRSERER  BIBRER
RARBREM CRERELHA

B ESET - AR RS
BME - WEUFRERESS

ERRARIIRE 2 FTRRE o It
Ah o Prewell REER X IFELE
BRALFE R 2 5] - #uBs - AL
REERBER - RER ARG
2 1ETE - Prewell RaEpt oA (] %
BREBREGCEERS R 2E
- AT RFEEER - EUER
T AERBRZEEEDA
B e
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For the year ended 3 1st March, 2004

29, OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS (confinued)

(o]

In the opinion of the direciors, a significant portion of the
alleged debts can be recovered from Prewell and an
adequate provision for doubtful debts has been made in
these financial statements. Regarding the counterclaim by
Prewell, the directors consider that the counterclaim is at its
preliminary stage and it is premature to make provision against

such claim.

A former employee of Beijing Thizlinux Software Co, Limited
["BTS"), a subsidiary of the Company in the PRC, (the "ex-
employee”} was dismissed on 10th February, 2004. On 26th
March, 2004, the ex-employee instituted legal proceedings
in the PRC court against BTS by claiming arears in salaries
of KMB420,000, interest, economic compensation and
damages which in aggregate amounted to approximately
RMB2,154,000. BTS sirongly disputes the claim and haos

taken legal advice.

On 27th April, 2004, BTS filed a counterclaim against this
ex-employee in the PRC court for the recovery of a loan of

app-oximately RMB239,000 advanced fo him.

EEZE_EEMFE=F=+—FILFF

29. ASRTEZEGR (&)

EERA - A Prewell FHEX
MERPNEE  HERLE
MBREARRKELEAE
f# o B Prewel Bz RBREM
T EFRARBENENSMHE
B - ISR R R ELBEDD
KRBT o

(b) DGR EME A FIL AR

EREEEERAE ([{0RED
B 2—REEE ([ZAE
El) RZFTME_ATER
fRE - RZBETME=Z/ =X
B - ZAEE MR AR IR
IMEEIL R AN - AL REDES R
AR 420,000 T2 RE
EHE  @ERERBESED
AR 2,154 000 5T « 4t 7Bl
REMBRBLEIIER - WE
BEEZER -

RZBEFOFINA=++H it
REESAAPBEERIERRBE
FZAEB B ENFEZER
HARE 239,000 7T ©
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29. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS [confinued) | 29. BRTHBZRE (&) i
As advised by the Group's PRC Lawyers, the salaries of the REAEETEZMZER & S
ex-employee wos fully setiled af the time of dismissal and, FERZFSONBFRETEX _8:
accordingly, the claim for salaries in arrears and the relevan 5 B REFREBMEZ Cg‘
interest cannot be established. In addition, the claim for BERWKI o {50 - EERE s
economic compensation ond damages is without merits. In FEREZRRITRZTNERE <%
respect of the counterclaim by BTS, the PRC lawyers are of I REMBREZ RBEMS -
the opinion that the ex-employee is liable to repay the REEMRSENERENRHER
outsianding loan in the presence of sirong evidence submitied BHER  ZAERANEER
by BTS. BREFBEZAE -
In the opinion of the directors, the loan is fully recoverable EXRAERAZENE &8
and no provision for doubtful debts is required 1o be made in ARG ST BRRERARREREL
these financial statements. B
30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30. TERIE
OCn 28th March, 2002, a joint venture agreement was entered RZEZE-_F=R_-+NB &2
into by the Company, Eaglemax International Invesiment Limited B ERREERRES Z Eaglemax
["EIL"), @ company wholly owned by Mr. Wong Hoi Wong, and International Investment Limited (TENL)
Beijing Normal University ["'BNU"} in relation to the formation of a B RENS N2 (TBNUY) - stk
sinoforeign equity joint venture, JingShi Thizlinux Laboratory Stock SNEE RS B — BN R AR
Company {the “JV"). Pursuant to the joint veniure agreement, the BRAB (4R DTUE4EME
Company, Elll and BNU are commitied to contribute ik - RBSECERE A7)
RMB15,000,000, RMB15,000,000 and RMB20,000,000 Bl R BNUREREZEREERE
respectively for their respective interests of 30%, 30% and 40% in FTia#E%s 30% - 30% R 40% BT E
the JV. However, there is no payment schedule specified in the joint AR%¥ 15,000,000 AR%
veniure agreement. ' 15,000,0007Tt 2 A R# 20,000,000
TT e A AEERBELEITAN
RHER ©
105
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30, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS [continued) 30. BERE (&)
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On 3rd June, 2002, the Company, Elll and BNU entered into @
joint venture supplemental agreement whereby the three parties
agreed fo set up/develop the 100 JingShi Thizlinux Infernet Course
Programmes (the "Programmes”}. Under the joint venture
supplemental agreement, each of the Company and EllL is
committed to investing RMB 10,000,000 for the development of
the Progreammes whereas BNU will be responsible for the
development, design of the courses and the provision of course
contents. There is no investment schedule specified in the

supplemental agreement.

Full details are set out in the announcement dated 3rd June, 2002.

Subsequent io the date of entering inio the supplemental agreement,
BNU infended to agree with the Company and EllL fo fix the timeline
for investments in the Programmes by the end of june 2002, this

was disagreed by the Company and EIIL.

As advised by the PRC lawyers, the disagreement amongst the
three parties has made the whole controctual arrangement
incomplete and, accordingly, all the three parties to the agreements

are nc longer committed to invest in the JV and the Programmes.

RZZETZFRAZE - ARF Bl
WBNUFTTZAERERAHS - &
o ETHI = S RBRLHE 100 K
RBENES DM RIS ([ FRIED) -
REEECEBRME - AoBIREIL
- FEREARY 10,000,000
THBEZERE  MENUBIEEERR
BRRATRE - URERIERNE -8
AHBELEBETREHER -

E-SHEENEHR-EEREN
RZB2ZRHR -

ERIUARBZEAHZE - BNUSRER
ARBREBE SR ERELNE
HREZAZTZZFNAE  EitH
ENEARERENER -

ERETRaNE BRI 2B
B AOHEHBBANRHEER
Bl BEABSITATARE
BITEN S EREERRERE
%o
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004

31.

32.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the ransactions as disclosed in notes 18, 21 and 30 to
the financial statements, the Group had no ofher material transactions

with its related parties during the year

The entering into the joint venture agreement and the supplemental
agreement as defailed in note 30 to the financial statements
consfituted connected fransactions under the GEM Listing Rules.
The direciors are of the opinion that these transactions were carried
out in the normal course of business of the Group and on normal

commercial terms.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT
On 6th May, 2004, the Company issued convertible notes with

aggregate principals of HK$ 10,000,000 os detailed in note 25

to the financial statements.

BE-TEME=/[A=+—HAUFE

31.

32.

EREALTES
BREIISIRRMIZE 18 - 21 RIOFAIRE
2RI ARERFRRLFRIE
ATTEEEMERZS °

REEZR MR T2 RR
BRAERGE (FEERBBERR
Mi5E30) BAREERS - EERAZL
ERZDRASE-REBEEPE
TTRIZ—REBRERETL -

BUBRTER

RIFZWMER[AE - FREET
A& #8EEE 10,000,000 BT AT
BEE  HERNMBBERMES -

e BT
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Financial Summary

RESULTS

Turnover

{loss}/profit from operations

Finance costs
Share of profit/floss] of a

jointly controlled entity

{loss)/ profit before tax

Tax

{Loss}/ profit attributable fo

shareholders

g (BB) /ER|
BiE— A RES
TREN/ (BE)

WA (B8]) /8
HE

Rl (B1R) &7

Year ended 31st March,
BE=-B=+—-HLEE

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
eEmE —FT-& —IZTC IEE-5 _—ETEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
37,415 64,152 30,392 4,315 34,923
(13,253) 7,056 1,181 (6,059) (1,828)
{100} (20) [122) - ~
- Q9 (625) [160) ~
(13,353) 7135 434 16,219} {1,828
- - (6] {6 (12
(13,353) 7135 428 (6,2251 (1,840}
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Finencial Summary BBBE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES TERRER «E
~t

QO

O

As at 31st March, 2’

Q

B=A=+-—8 §

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 3

<

SEENE —TT=F —BT-F —FE-F —FTTTH

HK$’000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000
FET TET TET TET TET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FrpEE 7 475 _____ 4 236 _____ 4 ,810 364 365
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE 40,997 36,145 23,565 1,898 1,415
DEDUCT: e

CURRENT LABIITIES RPRE 9,043 5,906 3,037 13,454 6,740

INET CURRENT ASSETS/ RYEE/ (BfR) FE
(LABILITIES) 31,954 30,239 20,528 (11,556} {5,325]

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRDEE

LABILTIES 39,429 34,475 25,338 (11,192] (4,960)
NON-CURRENT UABILTIES  #ERBIBE (14,000] {4,000} - - -
NET ASSETS/IUABILITIES] BE/ (Bf8) FE 25,429 30,475 25,338 (11,192] {4,960]
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Corporafe Informetion

TRER

Head Office and Principal Place of Business
Unit 502-505, 5/F., Tower 3

Enterprise Square, @ Sheung Yuet Road

Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

With effect from 29th July 2004

Unit 1004, 10/F Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre

37 Ma Tau Wai Road
To Kwa Wan
Kowlcon

Hong Kong

Registered Office

Ugland House, South Church Street
P.O. Box 309, George Town
Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

British West Indies

Company Website

www. thizgroup.com

Principal Share Registrar

Bank of Butterfield International (Cayman Lid.
Butterfield House, Fort Street

P. O. Box 705

George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Regisirar

Tengis Limitad

Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Cenire
56 Gloucester Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong
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Ugland House, South Church Street
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Grand Cayman

Cayman lslands

British West Indies
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www thizgroup.com
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Corporate Infermation

e

Principal Banker

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Tsimshatsui Branch

82-84 Nathan Road

Tsimshatsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong

Llegal Advisers

As to Hong Keng law
Cheung, Tong & Rosa
Rooms 1621-33, 16th Floor
Sun Hung Kai Centre

30 Haorbour Road

Hong Kong

As to Cayman Islands law

Maples and Calder Asia

1504 One International Finance Centre
1 Harbour View Street

Hong Kong

Avditors

PKF

26th Floor
Citicorp Cenlre

18 Whitfield Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

Company Secretary and Qualified Accountant
Mr. Chan Sai Yan, ACCA
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Corporeie Information TEER

General Information
Listing
T EL

listing Date

apEsy-]

Nominal Value

EiE

Stock Code
AR (L8R

Thiz Technology Group Limited BB BT &£ M5 R 2 5]

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
BRI

Reuters

iz 5o

Bloomberg
ZiBEAT

Announcement of 2004 Results

N -ETMERERS

Financial Year End

MREELEHEAR

—RR
Growih Enterprise Market of The Siock Exchange of Hong Keng Limited
BREBARIMERDPIBIER

27th July, 2001
s I s

HK$0.01 per share

B 0.0V BT
8119
8119.HK
8119 HK

28th June, 2004
ZEFNFERAZT AR

31st March
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